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1/ Letter to the Shareholders
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Dear Shareholders,

the business year that just ended is the 10th in the history 
of the Europe Energy Group.

A main event during the year that just ended was the de-
finitive settlement of the “Gascom affair”. In fact, last 8 
June the Company concluded the purchase of the business 
branch that it previously was leasing as part of the lease 
agreement with Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation. We are par-
ticularly pleased to announce that the acquisition transac-
tion was completed two years ahead of the original sched-
ule, resulting in huge economic benefits for the Company 
and its business. If on the one hand, the cost of leasing 
the branch will no longer appear in the Company’s income 
statement, on the other, the fact of having managed to 
come out unscathed but rather deeply transformed and 
reinforced from a situation that could have easily brought 
any business to its knees was a sign of the great strength 
and stability of our Group.

Revenues in 2017 amounted to Euro 295,348 against the 
Euro 444,094 thousand in 2016, confirming a widely an-
ticipated downward trend and which has probably reached 
the lowest levels possible. In fact, in the worst case sce-
nario, we expect revenues to stabilise around these levels 
in the years to come and more likely for them to once 
again increase.

The Group’s profit trend is a whole other matter. The Ebit-
da went from Euro 2,076 thousand in 2016 to Euro 4,187 
thousand in 2017, recording an increase of 101%. Profit 
before tax goes went from Euro 1,721 in 2016 to Euro 
4,066 thousand in 2017, recording an increase of 136%, 
while net income went from Euro 1,342 in 2016 to Euro 
2,581 thousand in 2017, recording an increase of 92%.

It is with great satisfaction that we wish to emphasise how 
this year too, the values listed in the financial statements 
reflect the figures and financial trends that the Company 
had presented to the credit institutions, confirming the 
forecasting ability and remarkable vision of the Europe En-
ergy Group’s management.

2017 was the year in which the Company began to reap 
the fruits of the transformation and efficiency improve-
ment plans it had begun in the previous years. Sales to 
end customers are gain growing significantly and, as seen 
above, the results were quick to follow.

Energy trading, the traditional core business of Europe En-
ergy S.p.A., continued in compliance with the new direc-
tives established already in 2016, leading to a greater use 
of clearing platforms to record energy trading transactions 
(and thus eliminating the counterparty risk and reducing 
the turnover) and a greater focus on short-term operation. 

The logistics platform managed by the Group allows us 
to deliver electricity anywhere in Europe and is the true 
feather in the cap of our business. 

Natural Gas trading continued to grow, affirming its pres-
ence on all major European hubs. 

The Company’s business in the Balkans, developed 
through our subsidiary LE Trading AS, further increased in 
the last financial year and, despite a particularly difficult 
year for some of the local markets, the Company succeed-
ed in affirming its status as one of the leading operators in 
the industry with steadily growing sales.

The banking world is now again supporting our business, 
to the extent that the profound changes it has been under-
going allow it to, but we are hoping that with this year’s 
results and the settlement of the Gascom affair, the Com-
pany’s relationships with the banking institutions may ex-
perience a further and profound boost. 

In the last year, and also for all new pursuits, the busi-
ness strategies we apply daily have remained unchanged 
compared to what has always set us apart, and rests on 
a search for zero risk on the credit side and on a precise 
control of the expected profit margins. 

Thanks to this approach, for the 10th year in a row the 
Europe Energy Holding Group closes with a profit and con-
firms its status as one of the most active operators of the 
Italian and European energy market. 

Allow me now to thank my fellow members of the Board 
of Europe Energy S.p.A. Eugenio Colla and Mr. Svetislav 
Bulatovic, Managing Director of LE Trading AS. 

I also want to thank all the management and all of the 
approximately 80 employees of our various branches in 
Europe who daily work with us in order to achieve the de-
sired results.

The Sole Director
(Matteo Ballarin)
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These are the third consolidated financial statements 
drafted by the Europe Energy Holding Group and have 
been prepared by the Parent company Europe Energy 
Holding S.r.l., assuming 6 September 2012 as the date in 
which Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. “officially” took over 
control of the sub-group Europe Energy S.p.A.  

More specifically, the Group controls an operating com-
pany, Europe Energy S.p.A., which in turn controls other 
companies, as evidenced in the organisation chart shown 
below. During the year, the Company proceeded with the 
incorporation of Europe Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. into 
Europe Energy S.p.A.. 

The latter company, starting from the previous year, chose 
to benefit of the option of drafting the financial statements 
in accordance with the international accounting stand-
ards. Please note also that the Group owns a stake in LE 
Trading A.S., an operating company located in the Balkans 
and which in turn has branch offices in several countries 
in the Balkan region. 

The financial statements have been drafted in accordance 
with the international accounting standards, even though 
the parent company has continued to draft its financial 
statements based on the Italian accounting standards.

GROUP PROFILE AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE   |

Matteo Ballarin
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The following image shows the companies that make up the Europe Energy Holding Group as of 30.09.2017:
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various European markets:

As regards natural gas sourcing and portfolio optimisa-
tion, the Group has a dedicated desk and is authorised to 
engage in physical exchanges of gas in Italy and in all ma-
jor European hubs. We also created a Trading platform for 
Natural Gas that allows us to seize all the opportunities 
offered by continental markets. The image below shows 
the Company’s scope of business.

We also continued to invest in expanding the Group’s 
institutional presence and the result is that I am still a 
Council Member of the European Energy Exchange and a 
member of the Energy Committee of Assolombarda. 
Mrs Loredana Pasqualini, counsel of subsidiary Europe 
Energy S.p.A., is among the most esteemed representa-
tives in the EFET (European Federation of Energy Traders) 
and is also responsible for some task forces within the 
Association, as well as being the coordinator of business 
in the energy production industry of AIGET (Italian Asso-
ciation of Wholesalers and Traders).

As regards the dispatching and logistics business, the 
Group developed expertise in-house that enable it to 
independently manage the entire energy and gas sup-
ply chain. The process starts with receiving energy and 
natural gas from manufacturers or based on bilateral 
agreements, which are then transported throughout Italy 
through the networks managed by Terna and Snam. With 
regard to energy, the Company manages the perfect bal-
ance in real time, whereas for natural gas, we handle its 

The parent company Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. was 
established on 6 May 2009 and is now in its 9th fi-
nancial year. 

Please note that on 8 June 2017 Europe Energy & Gas 
Power S.p.A. formalised the definitive purchase from 
Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation of the company operating 
in the energy and natural gas trading sector previously 
leased out to Europe Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. with 
deed issued by the Notary Gottardo in Padua. The ac-
quisition in question definitively brings the Gascom af-
fair to an end for the Group.

It should also be noted that on 12 June 2017, with 
deed issued by Notary Mondardini (folder no. 1888, 
register no. 2.640) drafted on 13 June 2017 in Ve-
rona and filed under no. 12.602, IT series, effective 
as of 1 July 2017, the company Europe Energy Gas 
& Power S.p.A. was merged by incorporation into Eu-
rope Energy S.p.A.

Thanks to this transaction, the Europe Energy Holding 
Group now operates in a vertically integrated manner in 
the following links of the value chain:

- Sourcing and portfolio optimisation (energy and nat-
ural gas);

- Dispatching and logistics (energy and natural gas);
- Retail sales to end customers of energy and natural gas.

As regards the Company’s energy sourcing and portfolio 
optimisation business, the year that just ended saw us 
shifting our main focus on the short-term (i.e. intraday 
supplies up to one month of delivery) in all the major 
European markets.  
These markets, as noted, have in the knowledge of the 
physical balance of the networks and in the technical 
knowledge their peculiarities, relegating speculative 
elements typical of other energy markets such as the 
oil market to a very limited role.
To date, the Group operates on all major continental 
market platforms, whether they be official Power 
Exchange points or OTC brokerage platforms. 
The Group continued to develop in Europe thanks also 
to the growth of its subsidiary LE Trading A.S. 

The geographical coverage of the market, therefore, 
now stretches from Great Britain to Turkey and from 
Spain to Ukraine. The Group currently represents one 
of the most well-distributed and developed logistic 
platforms in Europe.

The image below shows the Company’s presence on the 

|   EUROPE ENERGY
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storage, make agreements with local distributors for man-
agement of the last mile and measure, and deliver the raw 
material to end customers.  
This activity is possible thanks to the fact that on 16 March 
2017, Cerved Rating Agency S.p.A., for the third consecu-
tive year, confirmed the Group’s B.1.1 rating (investment). 
The rating, in fact, produces significant benefits in terms 
of reducing the amount of bank guarantees required by the 
counterparties.

Cerved Rating Agency S.p.A. is registered as a European 
rating agency (Credit Rating Agency, CRA), pursuant to Reg-
ulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 as amended, and is supervised 
by ESMA. Cerved is also recognised as an External Cred-
it Assessment Institution (ECAI) under EU Regulation No. 
575/2013 of the European Parliament. 

Finally, with regard to the business of energy and natural 
gas sales, efforts have been made by the Group to consol-
idate the business developed over the year and previously 
leased. From an operational standpoint, the implemen-
tation of the Group’s strategy is geared primarily to the 
sound management of the risks associated with its retail 
portfolio.

In fact, the two cornerstones that have always distinguished 
the Europe Energy Group’s history are: 

• key focus on credit risk management: The team of the 
Risk Manager, Mr Alessandro Demo, works hard to keep 
under control our daily exposure to clients. As of March 
2015, the Company has also signed a specific trade credit 
insurance policy with Coface SA for its customers of the 
business segment. This operation, besides lowering the 
risk on current customers, provided more risk assessment 
tools that drive pre-sales activities in order to minimise 
counterparty risk. The policy in question, following its 
positive application to the Company’s internal processes, 
was renewed for another two years and is now scheduled 
to expire in 2018;

• Control of the profit margin: the trading office is 
responsible for controlling the profit margin, which also 
has the task of securing the margins generated by the 
Group’s sales. This results in sales price lists being issued 
on a daily basis and/or with an hourly validity. Of course, 
this is inversely proportional to the expected profit margin, 
as the impact of volatility is evidently higher for the bids 
with the lowest margin (and thus will have a much shorter 
period of validity than bids having a higher price). 

During this financial year, the Company completed its 
programme of re-focusing and streamlining internal 
procedures and sales processes which, though costly and 
requiring considerable time to implement, is  already reaping 

good results. All this has resulted in a consolidation of our 
sales volumes and the number of contracts in our portfolio. 
The end customers to whom the Company supplies energy 
and natural gas are only those that provide the appropriate 
guarantees from a credit standpoint and adequate profit 
margins. This policy has allowed for a more efficient 
financial management of the business retail segment, 
maintaining consistent profit margins that are deemed 
satisfactory at this stage of the restructuring process. The 
sales team headed by Mr Francesco Mancuso has been 
profoundly reorganised in 2017 and has already started to 
produce the first budgeted results.
In fact, if on one hand, on the closing date of these financial 
statements, the retail portfolio consists of 18 thousand energy 
supply contracts (POD) (16 thousand as of 30.09.2016) and 
of 9 thousand natural gas supply contracts (PDR) (9 thousand 
as of 30.09.2016) for an estimated volume respectively of 
228 GWh (241 GWH as of 30.09.2016) and 22 million m3 

(23 million m3 as of 30.09.2016), at the time of the approval 
of these financial statements, forecast supplies for 2018 are 
approximately 320 GWh and 24.5 million m3.

Corporate structure
The share capital of the Parent company Europe Energy 
Holding S.r.l. is divided into 1,908,730 shares with a 
nominal value of 1 Euro each held to date by:

- no. 1,710,715 shares (89.63% of the share capital):  
Mr Matteo Ballarin;

- no. 190,873 shares (10.00%): Mr Eugenio Colla;
- no. 7,142 shares (0.37%): BB Holding S.r.l.
The corporate structure has not changed during the financial 
year under discussion.

As noted earlier, as of 1 July 2017, the Company 
Europe Energy Gas & Power S.p.A. has been merged by 
incorporation into Europe Energy S.p.A., while on 12 June 
2017, the parent company, as single shareholder of Europe 
Energy S.p.A., approved the share capital increase from 
Euro 3,500,000 to Euro 5,000,000.
We ought to point out once more that thanks to the 
acquisition of the company previously owned by Gascom 
S.r.l. in liquidation formalised on 8 June 2017, the 
Gascom affair by all means can be considered to be 
definitively settled. 

No changes have occurred in the corporate management sys-
tem, which continues to be “traditional” for all the Group’s 
companies. The Board of Directors of the Parent company 
has only one member (Mr Matteo Ballarin), while the Board 
of subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A. consists of two members 
(Mr Matteo Ballarin, Chairman and Managing Director, and 
Mr Eugenio Colla, Managing Director). 
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The Group achieved a profit before taxes of Euro 4,066 
thousand (Euro 1,721 thousand in the previous financial 
year), while the net profit for the year amounted to Euro 
2,581 thousand (Euro 1,342 thousand in the previous year). 
The EBITDA (which is determined as the difference 
between the production value and the cost of production 
net of accumulated depreciation and provisions, amounts 
to Euro 4,187 thousand (Euro 2,076 thousand in the 
previous year). Total revenues amounted to Euro 295,348 
thousand (Euro 444,094 thousand in the previous year). 
The Group closed the year reviewed herein with a profit of 

Euro 2,581 thousand (Euro 1,342 thousand in the previous 
financial year) after having allocated Euro 1,314 thousand 
for IRES (Corporate Income Tax)  (Euro 564 thousand in the 
previous year) and Euro 248 thousand for IRAP (Regional 
Income Tax) (Euro 162 thousand in the previous financial 
year) and net deferred taxes for Euro -77 thousand (Euro 
430 thousand in the previous year).

The operating profit is shown below (along with the percent-
age of individual items weighing on the Gross Margin):

Euro/1000 Amount as of  
30.09.2017

 
%

Amount as of 
30.09.2016

 
%

     

Revenues and income 295,348  444,094  

Cost of raw materials -279,195  -429,756  

Gross Margin 16,153 100% 14,338 100%

     

Personnel costs -2,947 -18% -3,400 -24%

Other operating costs -9,019 -56% -8,862 -62%

EBITDA 4,187 26% 2,076 14%

     

Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets -145 -1% -99 -1%

EBIT 4,042 25% 1,977 14%

Income (expenses) from investments 391 2% -54 0%

Financial management -367 -2% -201 -1%

Profit before taxes  4,066 25% 1,722 12%

Taxes -1,485 -9% -380 -3%

OPERATING PROFIT 2,581 16% 1,342 9%

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF THE GROUP   |
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The lower production value this year was widely expected 
and is aptly represented in the Company’s business plan. We 
ought to, at this point. discuss the factors that had a major 
impact on the lower revenues, even though we have already 
extensively pointed them out over the past few years: 

• the widely anticipated and planned regulatory changes 
regarding energy imports that involved a significant 
reduction of volumes in such operation; 

• the beginning of sales to end customers that, as expected, 
turns out to be much more costly in terms of financial 
commitment, both as regards bank guarantees and 
funding requests of working capital; 

• the problems within the Italian credit system and the 
wait-and-see attitude towards the new line of business 
on end customers before granting the necessary financial 
support to corporate business.

The unit margin has nonetheless increased in terms 
of natural gas brokerage (gross margin), thanks to the 
Company’s growing focus on the retail market business, 

which can rely on the vast expertise of our trading floor (a 
winning binomial as we see it).
The first margin amounted to Euro 16,153 thousand (Euro 
14,338 thousand in the previous year). This value is worth 
5.4% of revenues and has increased significantly when 
compared to the percentage of incidence in the previous 
year (3.2%). 

The Group’s operating profit for the year is Euro 4,187 thousand 
(Euro 2,076 thousand in the previous year). The incidence of 
this indicator when compared to the total revenues has also 
improved significantly, up from 0.5% to 1.4%.

Net financial expenses amounted to Euro -367 thousand 
(Euro -201 thousand in the previous year). The impact on 
total revenues increased from 0.05% in the previous year to 
0.12% in the current year. 

The Company’s net debt has increased significantly 
compared to the previous year and is detailed in terms of 
its structure and changes in the table below:

Euro/1000 Balance as of  
30/09/17

Balance as of 
30/09/16 Variation

Non-current bank payables 640 0 640

Bonds issued 0 0 0

Other non-current financial liabilities 0 0 0

Non-current financial lease payables 0 189 -189

Net long-term debt 640 189 451

    

Cash and cash equivalents -4,961 -7,210 2,249

Other current financial assets -9,798 -1,892 -7,906

Current financial receivables 0 0 0

Current bank payables 30,367 14,782 15,585

Current share of non-current debt 0 0 0

Other non-current financial liabilities 0 0 0

Current financial lease payables 0 96 -96

Net short-term debt/(liquidity) 15,608 5,777 9,832

    

NET FINANCIAL DEBT 16,248 5,966 10,283

|   EUROPE ENERGY
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The value of net financial debt is influenced mainly by two 
factors:

• the acquisition of the company operating in the retail 
market business from Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation;

• energy supplies regulated on the European exchange 
platforms where the energy is paid and the corresponding 
sale to other wholesalers made according to standard 
EFET sales conditions or to end users who have more 
extended billing terms, as is customary on the Italian 
market.

The alignment of the cash-flow cycle to the standards of the 
retail energy market that involves a significant difference 
between issuance of the invoice and payment collection 
has had no impact on the net debt thanks to a sound 
management of the working capital. In fact, the DSO (Days 
Sales Outstanding) for the year is equal to 27 days (28 
days in the previous year) while the DPO (Days Purchase 
Outstanding) was 34 days (28 days in the previous year). 

This year again saw the need to use part of the liquidity 
as guarantee on credit lines to issue sureties in favour 
of European operators and suppliers of electricity. In 
particular, the Italian government’s creditworthiness 
has worsened and accordingly, so as that of the national 
banking system, which has continued to have a negative 
impact on corporate business. This event, in fact, has had 
an impact both on the Group’s business and on its finances. 
The downgraded rating in previous years of the entire Italian 

banking system, apart from making it impossible for Italian 
banks to issue guarantees with ratings that are acceptable 
to major network operators in Europe and the main clearers 
of the European energy stock exchanges manifested in the 
previous year, also led to a significant number of institutions 
having lower ratings than the investment grade and therefore 
are no longer usable as issuers, not even by domestic 
institutional operators. The obvious consequence is that 
even when it comes to foreign suppliers, it is increasingly 
difficult to grant bank guarantees issued by Italian banks. 
This has resulted in the need for the Company to resort to 
foreign banks in order to have such guarantees issued. From 
an economic point of view, moreover, deterioration of the 
conditions on the Italian credit market have led to increased 
credit line costs.

Security deposits paid by the Group as guarantee for 
electricity and natural gas purchases amounted to a total of 
Euro 2,929 thousand (Euro 2,504 thousand in the previous 
year).

The trend in collecting payments has also suffered from the 
slower payment terms in the overall economic framework, 
in spite of closer monitoring of the remittance terms. This 
situation has had an impact on the operating profit due to 
default interest charged to customers for Euro 143 thou-
sand (Euro 545 thousand in the previous year).

The detailed cash-flows for this year and the previous year 

are shown below:

Euro/1000 Balance as of  
30/09/17

Balance as of 
30/09/16 Variation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
semester 7,210 10,405 -3,195

Cash-flows from operating business -2,966 2,609 -5,575

Cash-flows from investing activities/divestment -7,741 -722 -7,019

Cash-flow from financing assets 8,458 -5,082 13,540

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,961 7,210 -2,249
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The capital structure is detailed in the statement below in terms of its items and changes:

Despite the investments made, the degree of coverage of the company’s net equity has improved (49% versus 68% in the 
previous year).

Euro/1000 Balance as of  
30/09/17

Balance as of 
30/09/16 Variation

Non-current net assets:    

- tangible and intangible assets 10,219 1,672 8,547

- investments 765 1,380 -616

- other non-current net assets/(liabilities) 0 0 0

Total 10,983 3,052 7,931

Net working capital:    

- accounts receivable 29,852 42,990 -13,139

- other current net assets/(liabilities) 27,128 17,568 9,560

- accounts payable -36,302 -44,791 8,489

Total 20,677 15,767 4,910

Gross invested capital 31,661 18,819 12,641

Miscellaneous provisions:    

- Employee benefits -381 -224 -157

- provisions for risks and expenses and net de-
ferred taxes

445 69 376

Total 64 -154 218

Net invested capital 31,725 18,665 13,060

Shareholders’ Equity 15,325 12,699 2,626

NET FINANCIAL DEBT 16,248 5,966 10,282

Cash-flows from investments and financing largely refer 
to the acquisition from Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation of the 
company formerly leased and which operates in the retail 

market.

The shareholder, contextually with this acquisition, made a 
share capital increase of Euro 1.5 million to cover requests 
from the funding banking institute.

|   EUROPE ENERGY
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The economic framework outlined in Bulletin no. 4/2017 
published in October by the Bank of Italy reports that the 
situation of the global economy is continuing to improve, 
which has driven the institute of via Nazionale, unlike in 
previous years, to claim that the trend is now a reality. 

However, the Bank of Italy also states that there is the risk of 
a surge in volatility in financial markets, primarily because 
of the possible escalation of geopolitical tensions. There is 
also a growing uncertainty about inflation in the US, mainly 
due to the fact that it was below forecasts.

As regards the Eurozone, the Bank of Italy reports a steady 
growth trend. However, inflation continues to be at 1.5 
percent in September, largely because the ECB’s expansion 
strategies have been curbed by wage dynamics. Wages in 
many economies of the Eurozone are still at an all-time 
low and the situation goes hand in hand with the fact that 
workforce is not used to its full potential. 

The Governing Council of the ECB considers it necessary 
to maintain a high degree of monetary accommodation 
and will decide with regard to the possible adjustment of 
monetary policy tools after the end of 2017, taking into 
account the conditions necessary to cut the inflation down 
again to lower values but still close to 2 percent.

As for the Italian economy, the Bank of Italy estimates that 
growth continued during the summer months and that the 
GDP will increase in the coming months at a faster rate 
than in the second half of 2017. The contribution to growth 
would still be spread throughout the national productive 
fabric, with an increase in added value in both the services 
and industrial sectors.

The indicators provided by the Bank of Italy suggest that 
the expansion of production continues to be supported by 
domestic demand. Consumption growth in the third quarter 
of 2017 at a rate slightly higher than in the previous period 
is due to a general sense of confidence of households survey 
and to motor vehicle registrations.

Inflation in Italy has experienced a recovery compared to 
the all-time lows reached in previous years, but remains 
nonetheless low. In September 2017, inflation was recorded 
at 1.3 percent.

With regard to the credit sector, there has been an increase 
in loans to households and businesses, with the exception of 
the construction industry. Overall, the non-financial private 
credit sector grew by about 1 percent in August 2017. 

The improving macroeconomic conditions have had a positive 
effect on the credit quality of Italian banks. Thanks to the 
consolidated growth trend, the rate of credit deterioration 
is now again in line with the values it recorded before the 
financial crisis. At the same time, the incidence of the 
stock of non-performing loans on total loans has weakened 
further (down to 8.2 percent net of value adjustments in the 
second quarter of 2017), also as a result of the liquidation 
of the Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca that 
took place in June 2017. Transactions involving transfers 
of NPLs (Non-Performing Loans) which are close to being 
completed in the coming months will further contribute 
significantly to the decline in non-performing loans.

The cost of borrowing remained at historic lows and was flat 
in the first nine months of 2017. The graph below shows 
the trend of the 3-month Euribor interest rate in the current 
and previous financial year.
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The average value of the 3-month Euribor in the current 
financial year was -0.33, while in the previous year it 
amounted to +0.21 (-57%).

For the year 2017, the Italian Government estimates the 
national public debt (primary balance summed to the cost 
of interest on the debt) to be 2.1 per cent of the GDP and 
the ratio between the debt and GDP to drop by 0.4 percent-
age points compared to 2016 (when the ratio was 13.6 per 
cent). Based on these estimates, Italy would reach break-
even in 2020. In the same year, the public debt-to-GDP 
ratio would drop to 123.9 percent.

The Euro/Dollar exchange rate during the period 1 October 

2016 – 30 September 2017 was an average  1.1056 USD 
per Euro, continuing a downward trend when compared 
to the same period of the previous year (1.1109 USD per 
Euro). Volatility has increased significantly compared to the 
previous year and with a substantial upward trend as of April 
2017. The exchange rate peaked on 8 September 2017 
with the Euro trading for 1.2094 USD (1.1569 on 3 May 
2016 in the previous year). The lowest value was recorded 
on 3 January 2017, with the exchange rate being 1.0341 
USD per Euro (1.0541 on 3 December 2015 in the previ-
ous year).

The graph below shows the trend in the Euro/Dollar exchange 
rate during the year in question and in the previous year:

As for growth forecasts, the OECD in its latest Economic 
Outlook published in November 2017 stressed that the 
global economy is growing at the fastest rate since 2010. 
Equally important is the OECD’s observation that the growth 
rates are lining up between countries. This long coveted 
global growth supported by fiscal stimulus policies is 
accompanied by a solid increase in jobs, a moderate growth 
of investments and a recovery in world trade.

The OECD’s optimistic outlook is reflected in the global 
growth forecasts, with an estimated growth of the global 
GDP compared to 2016 (+3.1%), which was +3.6%, +3.7% 
and 3.6% respectively in the three-year period 2017-2019.

Among the advanced economies, the OECD foresees a 
moderate recovery with a projected growth of GDP of 2.4% 
in 2018 and 2.1% in 2019. The Eurozone will decrease 
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its growth gap compared to emerging countries, with an 
estimated 2.1% in 2018 and 1.9% in 2019. In Japan, 
growth is again estimated to drop (1.2% in 2018 and 1.0% 
in 2019).

The transition continues, instead, in China, with a shift 
from a primarily industrial to a more service-based economy. 
Growth is expected to continue the programmed trend, 
with an estimated +6.6% in 2018 and +6.4% in 2019. 
The growth rate in India is expected to be around 7.0% 
in the two-year period 2018-2019, while many emerging 
economies are expected to maintain a stable growth trend 
in the the same two-year period of around +5.0%. Deep 
recessions in Russia, which continues to suffer from 
international sanctions, and Brazil, have finally ended. 
For both countries, 2017 was the first year in which the 
economy grew after years of recession.  Russia will grow by 
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2.0% in 2018 and by 1.7% in 2019, while Brazil should 
close at +2.0% in 2018 and +2.1% in 2019.

The OECD Economic Outlook puts particular emphasis 
on the fact that, despite the short cyclic growth being 
welcome, it remains modest compared to previous economic 
recoveries that can be considered to be structural.

Moreover, the conditions for growth to continue on a stable 
trend beyond 2019 and in a way that is inclusive of all 
the global economies are not yet fully in place. The global 
economy is still suffering from the lingering effects of a 
weak growth in the wake of the financial crisis. Investment, 
trade, productivity and salary levels still suffer the negative 
effects of the economic situation of these last 10 years. 

As noted, though, the global economy is expected to 
improve in the two-year period 2018-2019. The OECD 
remains concerned by the limited level of structural reforms 
and the high level of debt, especially with regard to China. 

As for Italy, confirmation of the investment rating by the 
three major international rating agencies was very important 
to its economy. In October 2017, in fact, both Fitch and 

Standard & Poor’s confirmed the country’s BBB rating and 
both forecast a stable outlook. Standard & Poor’s even went 
as far as increasing its rating from BBB- to BBB. Even 
Moody’s confirmed the Baa2 rating in October, but with a 
negative outlook.

Taking a look at the oil market, the big event in 2017 
was the signing of the agreement, strongly encouraged by 
Saudi Arabia, between OPEC and 10 other oil-producing 
countries regarding production cuts. Unlike previous 
attempts to reach an agreement in the past, this time 
round the countries involved lived up to their commitments 
to reduce the output. In addition, Saudi Arabia displayed 
a willingness to intervene directly in order to achieve the 
objectives of cutting down production. Upward demand 
forecasts, driven also by rigid temperatures in Europe, 
have contributed to a recovery in oil prices. Finally, the 
decrease in production of shale-oil and US stocks of crude 
oil and distillates, as a result of the hurricane season, 
led to an increase in price fluctuations over the last two 
months of the year.

The graph below shows the trend of brent prices in the 
current and previous financial year (USD/barrel): 

The average Brent prices in the year in question is 52.24 USD per barrel while in the previous year, it amounted to 43.44 USD/
barrel (-20%).
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LOGHI GrUPPO EUrOPE ENErGY



21

      

Global and European energy market trend

In recent years, the global energy market has been 
witnessing the transition that is taking place and which, as 
pointed out by the IEA (International Energy Agency) in its 
World Energy Outlook 2017, is characterise by the following 
four key trends:

- the rapid development and the significant decrease of the 
costs of renewable energies;

- the growing use of energy sources to produce electricity;
- the transition to an economy based on services and a 

cleaner energy mix in China;
- the consolidation of the United States’ role as a leading 

producer of shale-gas and shale-oil.

In addition to these trends is the fact mentioned in the 
previous paragraph that emerging countries will have 
an increasingly decisive role as influencers of the global 
demand for energy, especially India, which will have an even 
more important role than China in the coming decades.

The change will be much faster and have a greater impact 
than we can imagine. For example, the IEA estimates that 
within just two decades, in order to meet the increasing 
demand, China will need to add to its network the equivalent 
to that of the US and India the equivalent of the European 
Union’s current network. 

With regard to the oil market, as noted, in 2017 we have 
seen the OPEC countries return to market management. 
In fact, if in 2014 OPEC had made the ground-breaking 
decision to pursue the creation of a free oil market, the 
agreement between its member countries and another 10 
oil-producing countries for programmed cuts to production 
represented a return to the past. 

As seen in the graph above, the price of Brent had dropped 
to a record low of 30 USD/barrel in January 2017. As barrel 
prices picked up again, so did investments in the upstream 
after an annual decrease in investments of 25% in both 
2015 and 2016. 

This last aspect is especially significant, as the oil market 
in coming years, as seen earlier, will be facing a strong 
demand from emerging countries (mainly India and China) 
and a production capacity whose level will depend directly 
on investments in E&P. 

With regard to environmental policies, in 2017 we saw the 
US Administration take a step back and abruptly withdraw 
from the Paris agreements (COP21) on the fight against 
climate change. The impacts that this decision will have 

on the US and global energy market are still not fully clear. 
The international community, China and France in the front 
row, has responded by reaffirming the commitments taken 
in Paris during the COP23 in Bonn and during the One 
Planet Summit in Paris.

In this regard, the prospects for the global natural 
gas market are very positive, especially because this 
commodity represents an alternative far less polluting 
than other fossil fuels. An added factor is the increasing 
recourse to liquefied natural gas (LNG) that eliminates 
the logistical difficulties involved in transporting natural 
gas through pipelines. The IEA estimates that within the 
next 20 years, natural gas liquefaction plants will double, 
with the US, Australia, Russia, Qatar, Mozambique and 
Canada being the countries most affected by the increase 
in capacity.

All these factors will lead to a massive transformation of 
the natural gas market, which is currently characterised by 
contracts that are typically long-term, generating what by all 
means will be a global natural gas spot market already by 
the end of the next decade.

As regards the European natural gas market, the trend 
in prices has been affected by the decision to shut-down 
the French (21) and Swiss (2) nuclear plants, which we 
will discuss in the following paragraph and which has led 
to an increased demand for natural gas for the production 
of electricity. The average TTF price quotations this 
year was Euro 16.81/MWh and has increased by 17% 
compared to the average price in the previous year (Euro 
13.93/MWh).

ENERGY MARKET TREND   |
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The following graph shows the trend in natural gas prices 
to the Title Transfer Facility (TTF) in the financial year in 
question and in the previous year.

Trend of the Italian energy market

The following graph shows the trend of the National Single 
Price (PUN) in the current financial year and in the previous 
one:

|   EUROPE ENERGY

The trend this year was affected by the particularly harsh 
winter and the unusual decision in late 2016 to shut-down 
a third of the power capacity of nuclear plants in France. 
Out of 58 active reactors in France, the ASN (Autorité de 
Sûreté Nucléaire - the French National Safety Authority) 
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shut-down 12 of them based on suspicions that the 
standards required for the construction had not been met. 
Added to these 12 reactors were another nine that had 
already been shut-down during the same period in order 
to perform special maintenance (as well as two reactors in 
Switzerland). This situation in the early months of 2017 
transformed France from an exporter to a net importer 
from neighbouring countries (Germany, Switzerland, 
Spain and Italy). As you can see from the above graph, 
the average PUN in the months of January and February 
2017 was 30% higher than the average PUN in the same 
months of 2016.

August 2017 also saw the average PUN increase by 
more than 30% than the average PUN in the same 
month of last year. This increase occurred because of the 
increase in energy demand, due mainly to high summer 
temperatures and a simultaneous scarcity of water 
resources. Electricity demand in Italy in August 2017 
(26.8 TWh) recorded an increase of 9.5% compared to 
the same month of last year.

The average PUN in the current year (Euro 52.46/MWh) 
was 20% lower than in the previous year (Euro 41.95/
MWh).

In the first nine months of 2017, production before 
pumping amounted to 240 TWh (235 TWh in the first 
nine months of 2016), 34.2% of which was covered by 
renewable sources (35.9% in the first nine months of 
2016), 54.8% by thermal generation (51.5% in the first 
nine months of 2016) and 11.7% by the net flow of im-

ports from abroad (13.4% in the first nine months of 
2016). More specifically, with regard to the production 
of electricity by type of source, in the first nine months 
of 2017, energy demand was covered by renewable en-
ergy sources to a lesser extent than in the same period 
in 2016, although with different trends for the individual 
sources. In particular, solar power production increased, 
while energy production from other renewable resources 
decreased. Overall, the gross demand for energy in the 
first nine months of 2017 increased by 1.7% compared 
with the same period of last year.

Thanks to the completion of the market coupling pro-
cess in EU countries, the correlation between the PUN 
and the main European spot prices is consistently great-
er. The difference between the average PUNs and the 
French prices has decreased significantly (-51%), with 
a price of Euro 6.67/MWh compared to the differential 
in the previous year, with the price fixed at Euro 10.06/
MWh. This is pretty much in line with the differential 
with Switzerland (Euro 6.89/MWh). The differential be-
tween the average PUN and the average price in Germa-
ny, instead, increased to Euro 17.12/MWh compared to 
Euro 14.11/MWh (+18%).

The graph below shows the comparison between the pric-
es of energy in the main European markets during the 
current year. Notice how in the first four months of the 
year, prices in Italy were lower than those in France and 
Switzerland due to the decision to shut-down a number 
of nuclear power plants because of the rigid tempera-
tures, as noted above:

ENERGY MARKET TREND   |
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As for the domestic market of natural gas, it too, was heav-
ily influenced by the decision to shut-down the plants and 
by the harsh temperatures in winter and the unusually hot 
temperatures in summer that reduced the availability of en-
ergy from hydroelectric power plants. 

SNAM data show that natural gas introduced into the power 
grid in the first nine months of 2017 amounts to a total 55 
billion cubic metres, with an increase of 4 billion cubic me-

ters compared to the first nine months of 2016 (+7.9%). The 
volumes of natural gas introduced into the power grid through 
the interconnected entry points with foreign countries or with 
LNG regasification terminals amounted to 52 billion cubic 
metres, with an increase of 4 billion cubic meters, equivalent 
to 9.0%, compared to the first nine months of 2016.

The graph below shows the trend of the price of gas indexed 
to the Gas Release 2 formula:

|   EUROPE ENERGY
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Until April, the formula was affected by the upward trend 
of Brent prices and distilled products between the second 
half of 2016 and the first quarter of 2017.

Although the trend has been basically stable, the effect of 
the recovery of the oil market prices only began to have a 

Just as for energy prices, the correlation between PSV pric-
es of natural gas and those of the main European hubs is 
steadily increasing. More specifically, the difference in av-
erage prices between Italy and Austria was only Euro 1.16/

ENERGY MARKET TREND   |

gradual impact from August 2017 onwards. 

The graph below shows the comparison between the prices 
of natural gas in the main European markets during the 
current year (in Euro/MWh):

MWh this year. The largest deviation (+11%) occurs with 
the most liquid market, the Netherlands, with an average 
price recorded during the year of Euro 16.81/MWh against 
Euro 18.81/MWh in Italy.
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Resolution of 20 October 2016 - 589/2016/r/eel - Other 
obligations tied with the enforcement of the Decree of the 
Ministry of Economic Development in cooperation with the 
Ministry of Economy and Finance issued on 13 May 2016 
and concerning billing of the RAI (Italian State TV) annual 
subscription in the electricity bill
The Authority for Electricity, Gas and Water (hereinafter 
AEEGSI or the Authority) approved the updated version of 
the technical specifications for billing the RAI annual sub-
scription in the electricity bill, version submitted by the AU 
last 28 September, which complements the procedure for 
managing reimbursements to end customers for annual fees 
unjustly charged by the electric company. The Authority’s 
decision, as the text of the resolution specifies, implements 
Article 6, paragraph 4, of the Regulation implementing the 
provisions of Stability Law 2016, according to which the 
Sole Purchaser makes information needed to process an-
nual subscription reimbursements available to the electric 
companies through the SII.

New system of settlement and billing of GME markets
The new versions of the Abridged Text of the Electricity Mar-
ket Regulation (hereinafter the EM Regulation) approved 
by Ministerial Decree of 21 September 2016 and of the 
Feed-in-Tariff Platform Regulation (hereinafter the FITP 
Regulation) approved by the AEEGSI by Resolution No. 
501/2016/R/EEL of 15 September 2016, updated with the 
intention of regulating the new weekly settlement system on 
MGP, MI and FITP energy markets.

At the same time, the new versions of the DTF, EM and FITP 
amended to incorporate the new provisions for payment 
terms, as well as the updated version of the DTF No. 10 
rev. 4 MGAS that regulates the “Billing of economic items 
and payment processing”, amended in order to adapt the 
deadlines for processing payments on the MGAS to those 
envisaged for the MGP, MI and FITP.

Furthermore, with the same notice, the GME also announc-
es that, pursuant to Article 17, paragraph 17.10, of the EM 
Regulation, as well as in accordance with Article 24, para-
graph 24.9, of the FITP Regulation, as of the above-men-
tioned date, in order to operate on the Electric Market and 
on the FITP, with reference to all the economic items for 
transactions whose underlying cash-flow date coincides 
with or comes after 1 December, operators must have acti-
vated the SEPA Direct Debit Business to Business internet 
banking payment system on the bank account they officially 
communicated to the GME (so-called SDD B2B). 

Resolution No. 2016-575/2016/R/Eel of 14 October 2016 
implementing the order of the Regional Administrative 
Court (TAR) of Lombardy, Section II, 1185/2016, regarding 
the Mechanisms for the automatic refund to end customers 

of amounts recovered by the company Terna S.p.A. with 
respect to the illicit conduct of dispatching users, conduct 
referred to in the proceedings initiated by the Authority’s 
Resolutions No. 342/2016/E/Eel and No. 459/2016/E/Eel
This resolution reflects the decisions of the TAR of Lom-
bardy regarding automatic refunds to end customers of 
amounts unduly charged for extra-costs on Msd.

The resolution actually only limits itself to “confirming 
and clarifying” that already provided by the regulation in 
force. To the extent that refunds will be guaranteed “regard-
less of the outcome of the decisions of the administrative 
Courts,” says a notice. More interesting are the procedures 
for recovery and compensation on the uplift provided for 
by Resolution No. 575/2016 and especially the updates 
on the investigation initiated by the AEEGSI on the units 
of consumption and producers. In particular, the Authority 
points out that a DCO “is being drafted” on the asymmetric 
adjustment measures announced, “which will be submitted 
for consultation to stakeholders, including users who own 
active units that, following said proceedings, may be eligi-
ble for application of the measures”.

As part of this proceeding, the Authority is “in the process 
of evaluating and deciding” whether to refund amounts un-
duly charged by producers in the wake of what already is 
being done with consumption units. The regulator, in fact, 
has already notified “the findings of the investigation” to 
said producers, findings that “in the case of proven illicit 
strategies from which the operator has profited significant 
margins (resulting in an undue increase of the costs sus-
tained by Terna and an undue increase of the so-called up-
lift) envisage the adoption of a measure that requires such 
operators (if they have not already done so) to reimburse to 
Terna the amounts derived from the application of the im-
balance charges from they would have unduly benefited”. 

Resolution No. 738/2016/R/com of 6 December 2016 “Bill-
ing and instalment plan rules: changes to the Regulation 
defined by the Authority’s Resolution No. 463/2016/R/com”
With this resolution, the AEEGSI applies a set of changes to 
the Regulation on billing and instalment plans established 
in the TIF and to Resolution No. 463/16 to which the TIV, 
TIME and TIVG are attached. 

The provisions of Article 2(c) of the Resolution, which allow 
for exceptions to the ban on advance billing aimed at allow-
ing the free market to develop flexible contractual solutions 
that meet the preferences of individual customers, are es-
pecially important. 

More specifically, the areas in which the Resolution in-
troduces changes are the following: (i) regular billing and 
metering of electricity consumption; (ii) self-reading; (iii) 
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compensation; (iv) payment in instalments; (iv) entry into 
force; (vi) scope.

With regard to the frequency of billing and metering of con-
sumption (Article 2(c)), the Resolution looks at the follow-
ing areas:

• advance billing: introducing changes to Article 6 of the TIF, 
the Authority allows for an exception to the ban on billing 
of consumptions after the emission date, thus allowing op-
erators to bill the service in advance, but only under cer-
tain conditions (Articles 6.5 and 6.8(d), which are listed 
on Page 12 of the Resolution and which concern specific 
disclosure obligations with regard to end customers;

• mixed billing: the Resolution specifies that the ban to add 
consumptions estimated after metre self-readings applies 
to self-readings acquired during the time period and fur-
thermore, removes the ban of adding consumptions esti-
mated in the first invoice issued after an invoice block;

• billing frequency: the option of increasing the billing 
frequency (usually every four months) for gas customers 
with a consumption below 500 Sm3/year is granted, in-
cluding to the man utility provider.

With regard to self-readings (Article 2(d), 2(e) and 2(f) and 
Article 4), instead, this Resolution introduces changes in 
the following areas:

• self-reading submission: the Resolution specifies that 
self-readings must be submitted by the seller to the dis-
tributor by and no later than 4 business days from their 
acquisition;

• window: the seller has the option of acquiring self-read-
ings reported by end customers in the extra-window peri-
od, including in cases other than those already provided 
for (through claims or phone reports);

• correction of invoiced amounts: this allows sellers, in the 
event of self-readings reported by customers as part of a 
claim or phone report, to immediately issue an invoice 
correcting the consumption values, without having to wait 
for the distributor to validate the new readings (although 
the approval is nonetheless required);

• late transmission: it is explicitly stipulated that in the 
event of late transmission of the self-readings by the sell-
er to the distributor, the latter is not required to approve 
the readings.

Resolution No. 800/2016/R/EEL of 28 December 2016 
“Further action for the enhancement of actual imbalance 
for the year 2016 800/2016 under the transitional ar-
rangements introduced by the Authority’s Resolution No. 
444/2016/R/eel” published on 29 December 2016 
With Resolution No. 800/2016/R/EEL, the AEEGSI has de-
cided on which changes to introduce to the mechanism for 

calculating effective imbalances for the year 2017, in light 
of the outcome of the recent meeting held by the Regulator 
to discuss the issue (see DCO No. 684/2016/R/EEL).

In this regard, we ought to mention that the AEEGSI with 
said DCO No. 684/2016/R/EEL has informed stakeholders 
of possible changes to the regulation for calculating im-
balances, regulation introduced temporarily by the former 
Resolution No. 444/2016/R/EEL. In particular, the Au-
thority wanted to confirm that for 2017, the procedure for 
applying the mixed “single-dual price” system already in 
force for units of consumption and units of production not 
enabled by programmable and, at the same time, postpone 
the date for introducing the mixed “single-dual price” sys-
tem for units of production powered using non-programma-
ble renewable energy sources (hereinafter referred to as the 
FRNP) while maintaining the existing regulation in force 
unaltered, without applying the dual price system. In ad-
dition, the AEEGSI also proposed changes to the current 
method for calculating the aggregate zonal imbalance sign.

As a result of this consultation, the AEEGSI with said res-
olution has provided two phases of implementation of the 
rules for calculating imbalances for the year 2017:

i. For the first period (January to April 2017), given the 
current methods for calculating the aggregate zonal im-
balance signal based on the movements decreed by Terna 
on the MSD, the Authority has decided to: either confirm 
application of the mixed “single-dual price” system (with 
a ±15% range) for consumption units and production 
units not activated but programmable, or not to extend 
the above mechanism to the FRNP production units.

ii. For the second period starting in May 2017, in light of the 
effects that the newly introduced methods for calculating 
the aggregate zonal imbalance signal based on the actual 
measures (which Terna must develop and submit to the 
Regulator for approval by and no later than next 31 March) 
will produce, the Authority has decided to: either increase 
the range for consumption units to ±30%, or to exempt the 
production units not activated but programmable from ap-
plication of the mixed “single-dual price” system, or final-
ly, to confirm (consistently with that provided for until April 
2017) the decision not to apply the mixed “single-dual 
price” system to the FRNP production units. 

Finally, in line with what envisaged in DCO No. 684/2016/R/
EEL and with reference to the Regulation for calculating 
effective imbalances to be adopted “with full effect”, the 
Resolution provides for preparatory work to be done in or-
der to come up with a method for calculating effective im-
balances based on so-called “nodal prices”, which provide 
more consistent price signals, while also making it possible 
to bypass the agreements that underpin the current Regu-
lation of imbalances.

|   EUROPE ENERGY
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EMIR Regulation (EU No. 648/2012 of 4 July 2012)
Starting from 1 January 2017, the new EMIR requirements 
will apply to Trade Repository reports, as established by the 
following Regulations published in the Official Journal of 
the European Union on 21 January 2017: 

i) the delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2017/104 amending 
the delegated Regulation (EU) No. 148/2013 and sup-
plementing Regulation (EU) No. 648/2012 (“EMIR”) 
regarding the regulatory technical standards (“RTS”) to 
specify the minimum amount of information to be report-
ed to the trade repository; and 

ii) implementing Regulation (EU) No. 2017/105 amending 
implementing Regulation (EU) No. 1247/2012, which 
introduces the implementing technical standards (“ITS”) 
regarding the format and frequency of Trade Repository 
reports under the EMIR. 

Both regulations will enter into effect as of the 20th day 
following their publication in the Official Journal of the 
European Union and shall apply from 1 November 2017, 
except for Article 1(5) of the implementing Regulation (EU) 
No. 2017/105, which will apply from the date of its entry 
into force. 

Resolution No. 2017/66/R/GAS of 16 February 2017 “Gas 
market rules for the introduction of the balancing plan” is-
sued on 17 February 2017 
With Resolution No. 66/2017/R/GAS, the AEEGSI has 
approved the consolidated text regarding the rules for 
the management of physical gas markets (so-called “TI-
CORG”) and contextually has repealed Resolutions No. 
525/2012/R/GAS and No. 282/2015/R/GAS. Furthermore, 
with said resolution, the AEEGSI has approved the rules 
for the introduction of the so-called “standard” phase of 
the new gas balancing system referred to in Resolution No. 
312/2016/R/GAS, ordering also the shut-down of the gas 
balancing online platform (PB-GAS) referred to in Resolu-
tion No. ARG/GAS 45/11. 

With reference especially to this aspect, please note that, 
with Resolution No. 312/2016/R/GAS, the AEEGSI had es-
tablished that, pending the amendments and supplements 
to be introduced to the Gas Market Regulation (MGAS), the 
Locational Products Negotiation Markets (MPL) and the 
Storage Gas Negotiation Market (MGS) were supposed to 
be organised temporarily within the regulatory framework 
of the PB-GAS. 

With Resolution No. 66/2017/R/GAS, the AEEGSI, there-
fore, has approved the provisions that contribute to bridging 
this “temporary phase”, establishing that: 

• with enforcement of the transactions concluded in the 
gas market sessions on 31 March 2017, the PB-GAS (as 

well as the temporary provisions for managing the MPL 
and MGS markets) are to be suspended and that simul-
taneously, the agreement between the GME and Snam 
Rete Gas (hereinafter  SRG) should be settled, pursuant 
to Resolution No. ARG/GAS 45/11; 

• the regulation for registering with the PSV should be ex-
tended also to transactions concluded in the MPL, which, 
with the “standardisation” phase of the new balancing 
plan, will also be part of the MGAS; 

• specific agreements should be signed with storage com-
panies insofar as concerns the management of the in-
formation flows necessary for the MGS to operate.  With 
reference to this last aspect, pending the definition of the 
agreements between the GME and the storage compa-
nies regarding the management of the information flows 
necessary to allow negotiations in the MGS (which must 
be approved no later than next 1 October), the AEEGSI 
established that:   

• the exchange of data and information between the GME 
and the company STOGIT, which is necessary for manag-
ing the MGS, continue to be carried out by SRG; 

• participation in the MGS be limited only to the biggest 
storage company.

Changes in actual imbalances 
The Regulation of actual imbalances was further changed 
and revised after 31 March 2017. As a matter of fact, please 
note that the Authority passed Resolution No. 419/2017/R/
eel in June 2017, whereby it redefines the value assigned 
to effective imbalances in the context of performing a com-
prehensive review of the dispatching service, which should 
provide price indications in real time to UdDs that are con-
sistent with the time, space and product category typical 
of energy value, using nodal prices and opting for a mech-
anism different from the current one, which is based on 
static zonal/macrozonal aggregations. 

PLACET Offer – AEEGSI Resolution No. 555/2017/R/com 
of 27 July 2017
Starting from 1 January 2018, all free-market power and 
gas sellers are required to include the PLACET among their 
bids. PLACET is a predefined bid targeted to families and 
small businesses (at a Free Price at Equivalent Main Utili-
ty Provider Conditions), at fixed contractual conditions de-
fined by the Authority, but at prices freely established by the 
seller according to a clear and understandable structure.

Sellers are required to include a fixed-price and a varia-
ble-price PLACET bid in their range of bids, one for power 
and one for gas, providing for the sale of power only, without 
being entitled to include additional services (economic ad-
denda or additional conditions). The general terms of sup-
ply will be determined by the seller according to a standard 
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form issued by the Authority with the support of a permanent 
working group formed by representatives of market operators 
and end customers. The form will serve as the benchmark 
for PLACET-based contracts and initially will be freely usa-
ble by sellers, but will also provide a tool to the Authority to 
monitor any other forms issued independently, in order to 
make sure they are consistent with the PLACET bid.

A single structure is envisaged for price of electricity, with a 
point share (€/customer/year) and a power share (proportion-
al to sampled volumes - €/kWh or €/Smc). The power share 
can in turn be variable, i.e. indexed to the price of the raw 
material in wholesale markets, adding a spread defined by 
the seller, or fixed over a given period (one year). The varia-
ble-price PLACET bid for the power market will be indexed 
according to the market price on the day before (PUN - Single 
National Price) and applying the main utility provider index 
for the gas market (the TTF, or reference index for the Dutch 
wholesale gas market). The Consolidated Billing Text (TIF) 
will be applied when billing the service, without any room for 
exceptions, as is the case, instead, for the free market. Sell-
ers will also not be entitled to apply other charges for invoice 
receipt or for access to own consumption. Customers will also 
receive a discount for electronic bills and direct remittance of 
payments, as is already the case for the main utility provider’s 
customers. Contracts will be permanent, without prejudice to 
the customer’s right to withdraw, and at economic terms re-
newable every 12 months and a price freely agreed between 
the seller and customer. The seller will have to notify the cus-
tomer sufficiently in advance to the deadline of the economic 
terms that will be apply after 12 months, with the customer 
deciding on whether to agree to the terms, including tacitly. 

Finally, Resolution No. 555/2017/R/com also completes 
the mandatory minimum terms for all free market offers 
other than the PLACET bid starting in 2018, with reference 
in particular to the new rules for negotiating contracts and 
billing terms (with the ban on the application of specific 
fees for receiving invoices).

Legislative Decree No. 129 of 3 August 2017 implement-
ing Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and 
of the Council issued on 15 May 2014 and regarding mar-
ket in financial instruments (so-called “MiFID II”)
On 28 July 2017, the Italian Government approved Leg-
islative Decree No. 129 of 3 July 2017, whereby it has 
implemented Directive 2014/65/EU Market in Financial In-
struments Directive (MiFID II) in Italy, and has also adapted 
the national legislation to the provisions of EU Regulation 
No. 600/2014 (MiFIR). 

The MIFID Directive, which will apply as of 3 January 2018, 
considerably changed the “rules of the game” for operators 
who trade energy derivatives. In particular, this Directive, on 

the one hand, has expanded the energy derivatives market 
and on the other, has narrowed the scope of exemptions 
that can be used by energy operators. 

Pursuant to the MiFID II Directive, both CO2 emissions and 
energy derivatives traded on a Organised Trading Facility 
(OTF) are now considered financial instruments – except 
those that are to be regulated by physical delivery.

The MiFID II Directive also introduced a revision of the ex-
emptions available through the MiFID. In particular, the Di-
rective does not apply to those subjects who:

i) are directly involved in the trading of derivatives on goods 
or emissions or derivatives thereof;

ii) provide other investment services - other than directly 
trading derivatives on goods or emissions or derivatives 
thereof - to customers or suppliers as part of their main 
business, 

provided that the following conditions are met:

- the activity is secondary to their main business within the 
Company and the main business does not involve the pro-
vision of investment services, banking services, or mar-
ket-making activities in relation to derivatives on goods;

- the subjects in question do not apply a high-frequency 
algorithmic trading method;

- the subjects formally notify by 31 December each year 
that they wish to benefit of the exemption and, at the 
request of the Authority, on what basis they consider their 
activity as secondary to their main business. 

Finally, the MIFID II Directive introduced the rules for posi-
tion limits and reporting obligations.  

In particular, the MiFID II Directive imposes the obligation 
for the competent Authorities to establish limitations on the 
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extent of a net position that can be held by a person at 
any time in commodity derivatives traded on trading venues 
and compared to economically equivalent OTC contracts 
(EEOTC). The delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2017/591 
adopted on 1 December 2016 by the European Commis-
sion lays down the standard methodology that the compe-
tent national Authorities must use to calculate and apply 
these position limits.

To that end, in order to fulfil the obligation of monitoring the 
position limits, members or participants in regulated markets 
(MTF) and OTF customers must provide the investment firm 
or the market operator that manages the trading venue with 
detailed information on their positions held on negotiated 
contracts at the trading venues in question on a daily basis, 
including the positions of their customers and the customers 
of those customers, all the way to the end customer.   

Law Decree on Competition (DDL)
The so-called Law on Competition was formally approved on 
2 August 2017. The table below shows the most important 
measures and changes introduced insofar as applies to the 
industry of Europe Energy S.p.A. 

As regards termination of the main utility provider, please 
note: 
- the end of the main utility provider of gas and power start-

ing from 1 July 2019. Customers who purchase electric-
ity (private customers and companies who purchase LV 
with less than 50 employees and an annual turnover of 
no more than €10 million) who do not have a provider will 
switch to the service by participating in local auctions at 
conditions that encourage their transition to the free mar-
ket (unlike the previous version of the DDL, the auctions 
will not involve those customers who have not chosen a 
provider);

- AU will develop and manage an online platform where it 
will publish gas and power supply offers, so as to allow 
customers to compare different offers and ensure trans-
parency;

- sellers will have to draw up at least one gas or power 
supply offer at a fixed price or at least one at a variable 
price for the following categories of consumers: private 
customers, LV purchasing businesses and businesses 
with consumptions not higher than 200,000 Sm3/year. 
Sellers shall submit the offers to the AEEGSI and on the 
same date publish them on the provider’s website. The 
offers will also have to specify the average composition of 
the energy source used for the supply and the amount of 
greenhouse gas emitted per Kwh;

- with the aim of lowering the cost of heating bills, AEEGSI 
will advertise commercial offers targeting groups of buy-
ers, as well as develop online platforms to help cluster 
small consumers;

- The AEEGSI will have to send a report on the monitoring 
of the retail markets to MiSE, especially with regard to the 
following indicators: availability of the online platform for 
users to compare offers, compliance with the switching 
and billing and outstanding balance payment deadlines, 
operation of the SII, implementation of brand unbundling 
between sellers and the DSO integrated vertically, service 
provision to families in economic hardship, extension of 
surveillance and reporting to consumers. MiSE will for-
mally announce it has reached the targets by issuing its 
own decree and if one or more targets were reached, the 
AEEGSI and MiSE will adopt the necessary measures;

- the MiSE decree will also define the measures nec-
essary to ensure that the temporary price regulation is 
abandoned and so that customers can make an informed 
choice to access the free market; 

- starting from 1 January 2018, customers of the main util-
ity provider must receive an appropriate notification of 
the termination from each supplier. 

Below is a list of the provisions most relevant to the energy 
industry:
- major outstanding balance payments: sellers must break-

up the overdue amount into instalments and are entitled 
to charge legal interest only (the obligation to offer an 
instalment plan does not apply if the outstanding balance 
due is attributable to the customer) (paragraph 78):

- in the event of prolonged unavailability of real consump-
tion data, without prejudice to the procedures and dead-
lines for DSO to pay the fees, the AEEGSI will adopt 
measures to ensure accountability of the DSOs and to 
facilitate access to the metres (paragraph 79);

- the list of licensed power sellers will be available at the 
MiSE (sellers will have to be included in the list in or-
der for them to operate on the market) (paragraphs 80, 
81 and 82), which will be approved by resolution of the 
AEEGSI; 

- licensed power and gas sellers can participate in the 
fraud prevention system in the consumer credit sector 
and deferred or postponed payment plans (as per Legisla-
tive Decree No. 141/10) (paragraph 84);

- close-out netting clause: this clause, which applies to 
wholesale power and gas products, will be valid and ef-
fective (except for contracts with end customers inde-
pendently of their consumption capacity) also when fil-
ing a settlement procedure, economically and financially 
restructuring a company or in the event of liquidation 
(involving the company’s insolvency or preliminary to 
an insolvency proceeding, with or without seizure of the 
debtor) with regards to one of the parties (paragraph 86);

- simplification of the process for changing a vendor in 
case of illegal occupation of property (paragraph 70);

- integration of the provisions on the separation of vertical-
ly-integrated distribution system operators (paragraph 91).
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Risk (and uncertainty) management goals 
and policies
The risk management process is closely tied to the Com-
pany’s strategic planning process, with the aim of associ-
ating the overall risk profile to the forecast profit margin 
in the Group’s budget.
In that regard, please note that the Group is pursuing 
a strategy to diversify its business both with reference 
to the types of markets and to the geographical refer-
ence areas. The Group’s decisions to focus on sourcing 
& optimisation in the short-term and to access the retail 
market in foreign countries through its affiliates and/or 
subsidiaries fits into the above strategy.

Market risk
The growing volatility of energy commodities (electricity, 
oil, coal and other derivatives) over the last few years 
has led to an increased exposure to fluctuations in the 
economic result of companies in the industry. 
This risk area is found mainly in the procurement stage, 
because the Group’s purchases are subject to seasonal 
fluctuations in energy and natural gas prices, which it 
tends to limit and reduce.
In this context, besides regularly monitoring the trend 
in prices in the industry, in particular of electricity and 
natural gas, the Group hedges the cost through the 
acquisition of derivative financial instruments.
The potential risks to which the Group may be exposed 
are also tied to non-bilateral purchases and/or sales 
(i.e. commitment to purchase energy that is not sold, 
or vice-versa), or to misaligned electricity and natural 
gas purchase and selling prices The first risk is avoided 

through sound management of our contract portfolio, 
while in the event of the second risk, the Company resorts 
to instruments to manage the risk of prices referred to as 
CFD (contracts for difference). These contracts enable 
the Company to establish the effects on sales margins, 
regardless of changes in market conditions. 
Contracts for difference (CFD) are alternatives 
instruments to the actual purchase/sale of electricity. 
These contracts swap differentials compared to 
current stock exchange prices, and are used, as such, 
to establish the fluctuating price of the Energy Stock 
Exchange (PUN - National Single Price) or natural gas 
market (PSV- Virtual Exchange Point). More specifically, 
the Company uses them to establish the price of sales 
or purchases on the stock exchange (which changes 
from one hour to the next) tied to sales or purchases 
of electricity and natural gas at a flat rate, setting the 
margin for the transaction, independently of changes to 
the market.
To this end, with resolution of the Board of Directors 
of September 23, 2011, Europe Energy S.p.A. has 
enforced a specific internal procedure in order to monitor 
and mitigate the aforementioned risks. This procedure is 
being constantly updated and implemented. 

Regulatory risk
A potential source of risk is the constant evolution of the 
legislative and regulatory framework, which affects the 
market, fee plans, the levels of service quality required, 
and technical and operational obligations. This risk area, 
in fact, is tied to the current technical complexity of the 
industry, which requires a consistent update of the reso-
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lutions of the different competent authorities in the field, 
both nationally and internationally.
Regarding thereto, Europe Energy S.p.A. has a legal & 
compliance office formed by two in-house lawyers with 
key experience in legislative matters, in order to ensure 
ongoing monitoring of newly introduced laws in the in-
dustry and adapt to them efficiently so as to limit their 
economic impact as much as possible. 

For the same reason, subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A. 
became a member of the EFET (European Federation 
of European Traders) and became a member of the 
AIGET (Association of Italian Energy Wholesalers and 
Traders). 
With regard to the subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A., a 
specific organisation model was adopted, pursuant to 
Legislative Decree No. 231/2001, which is also con-
stantly being updated.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate fluctuations, 
especially in terms of financial expenses associated with 
the overall debt.
The Group regularly reviews its exposure to the risk of 
changes in the interest rate. The Group’s primary goal is 
to reduce the volatility of financial expenses.  We have 
achieved this goal by combining the fixed and variable 
rate in debt structure, if need be, resorting to appropriate 
hedging.

Credit risk
The credit risk represents the Group’s exposure to 
potential losses arising from non-fulfilment of the 
obligations undertaken by both commercial and financial 
counterparts. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is tied 
predominantly to its growing sales of electricity and 
natural gas on the wholesale and retail markets.
In order to limit this risk, the subsidiary Europe Energy 
S.p.A. introduced a specific procedure for credit risk 
management. Moreover as mentioned earlier, effective as 
of March 2015, Europe Energy Gas & Power S.p.A. signed 
a specific trade credit insurance policy with Coface SA for 
its customers of the business segment. This operation, 
besides limiting the risk on current customers, provided 
a broader set of risk assessment tools that drive pre-sales 
activities in order to minimise counterparty risk. 
The risk manager’s main task from the time of his 
appointment is to prepare a plan for the acquisition of 
retail customers and apply it within the Company. 

Liquidity risk
The Company manages the liquidity risk with the aim of 
limiting the risk that the financial resources available are 
not sufficient to cope with its financial and commercial 
obligations within the predetermined terms and 
deadlines.
With reference to its cash-flows, please note that, apart 
from fluctuations in prices that are typical of our line of 
business, there is no evidence of particular risks in the 
financial realm, because: 
1. The Group made a choice ahead of time insofar as 

concerns its wholesale to sell energy to wholesal-
ers, largely municipal companies or major operators, 
which guarantees timely payments, or to counterparts 
that issue bank sureties. Such activity is however, as 
noted earlier, experiencing a significant contraction;

2. for sales of electricity and natural gas to end custom-
ers, the Group applied custom pre-sales procedures in 
order to avoid the risk of unpaid bills and insure busi-
ness client credit. Moreover, the Group applies all the 
procedures for switching off and immediate interrup-
tion of service, in keeping with the specific industry 
regulations;

3. the purchase – sales cycle establishes that customers 
process payments within 20-45 days and the Group 
pays suppliers within 20-45 days, so as to have a good 
cash-flow, with timely payments from customers and 
deferred payments to suppliers.

Our strategic goal is to ensure that at all times the Group 
is able to comply with its financial deadlines in the 
upcoming twelve months.
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financial strength and its marketing plans lead us to 
expect that the management will achieve the corporate 
business plan goals.
The Group aims to continue the energy trading business 
through sales to end customers. Moving in this direction, 
our goal is to boost:
- the management of the Group’s energy and natural gas 

portfolio, and environmental certificates;
- risk management and portfolio optimisation;
- definition and implementation of hedging strategies;
- definition and implementation of marketing strategies 

in retail market;
- green marketing activities;
- dispatching contract management with Terna;
- access to regulated markets (IPEX, PCE, Import/Export).
The Group will continue the activity in the short term, i.e. 
supplies with delivery ranging from single hour (daily and 
intra-day markets) up to one month at the most, or OTC 
transactions with primary standing counterparts. In fact, 
all contracts have been signed with institutional partners 
and demanding sufficient guarantees, in order to cancel 
the credit risk.
Short-term markets, with particular reference to the 
intra-day and daily markets, are the main investment 
focus in terms of know-how and corporate growth as a 
whole in the coming years. These markets are among 
the most profitable, especially because of their risk 
level, having very limited underlying elements, in view 
of the reduced time horizon to which they refer. On the 
other hand, this business venture requires a widespread 
presence and considerable investments in terms of 
knowledge and understanding of cross-border energy 
flows and the dynamics of domestic production. To 
successfully tackle these Challenges, the Group runs its 
business 7 days a week.

Foreseeable trend of business 
in the period 01.10.2017 - 30.09.2018

As for the business outlook, please note that in addition 
to the core business of wholesale energy and natural 
gas sales to end customers, the Group will also focus 
on developing its sourcing and portfolio optimisation 
business. The retail market business is capital-intensive 
compared to the wholesale of energy and natural gas that 
the Group has historically been involved in. Development 
of the retail market business, which is primarily inbound, 
will be closely dependent on the availability of sufficient 
credit lines.
As mentioned earlier, the basic principles we will will 
apply to boost the Group’s business are:
- maximum attention in managing risks and uncertainties 

(see the relative paragraph below);
- diversification of Group business with reference to the 

various tiers of the energy industry. More specifically, after 
having started selling natural gas to end customers, the 
Group acquired specific know-how during the current 
year to ensure full coverage of the supply chain.

- internationalisation of the Group’s business by developing 
and supporting companies that operate on foreign 
markets, with particular reference to the Balkans. The 
Group will also extend sales of energy and natural gas to 
end customers in certain key European countries.

Looking at the situation in our reference market, we 
expect the demand for electricity and natural gas in Italy 
to continue to drop, which will lead to lower margins on 
the wholesale market due to increased competition in the 
supply of electricity and increase in the cost of credit.
We expect these factors to continue to influence the 
Group’s business also in the period 2017-2018. 
Despite the variability of this scenario, the Group’s 
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held or negotiated shares in the year closing on 30.09.2017, 
or purchased any, either this year or in the next.
The Board, therefore, has nothing to report for the purposes 
of art. 2428, paragraph 2, points 3 and 4 of the Italian 
Civil Code.

Relations with affiliates/subsidiaries and 
related parties
All transactions with affiliates/subsidiaries and related 
parties fall within the Group’s standard business 
administration and are regulated by standard market 
conditions, i.e. those that would normally apply between 
two independent parties. For further details, please refer to 
the charts in the Explanatory Notes.

Information about the Environment
We believe that the Group’s energy trading with wholesalers 
respects the laws on environmental protection in the energy 
industry, and that there is no likelihood of liabilities arising 
and/or of damage to the environment.

Workforce
The Group’s workforce as of 30 September 2017 consists of 
55 employees (73 as of 30.09.16) broken down as follows:

For consolidation purposes, we have proceeded to:
- prepare the sub-consolidated financial statements of sub-

group Europe Energy S.p.A. as of 30.09.17;
- eliminate the sub-consolidated “stake” held in Europe 

Energy S.p.A. from the financial state  ments of the par-
ent company Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. and to account 
for the consolidation differences.

Investments
As regards investments in financial assets, which at the date 
of 30.09.2017 amounted to Euro 9,798 thousand, they 
increased primarily because of a short-term loan with high 
interest rate granted to the company LE Trading AS with 
offices in Bratislava (Slovakia) for Euro 8,040 thousand.

Significant events occurring  
after 30 September 2017
With regard to significant events occurring after 30 
September 2017, please note that the Company has 
completed the acquisition of a stake in Romanian-based 
Europe Energy Gas & Power (formerly ECG Energy S.r.l.., 
which is discussed in the Explanatory Notes, and has 
acquired stakes in Croatia and Slovenia in December 2017.
These acquisitions, along with 63% of the company in 
Romania, are meant to boost the Group’s retail market 
business in foreign markets, which will be one of the biggest 
challenges for us in coming years.

Legal situation
The Company’s legal situation is the same as in the previous 
year.

Research and Development
The Company is actively involved in research and 
development in order to identify new projects in the energy 
industry and especially in the field of renewable energy 
sources. Another area in which the Group is investing 
heavily is the study of volatility on energy markets and its 
repercussions on a transnational level. 

Finally, ICT tools developed in-house are daily the subject 
of research and development in order to improve their 
effectiveness.

However, during the period that closed on 30.09.2017, 
the Company did not opt to capitalise R&D expenses, as 
provided for by accounting standard IAS 38.

Treasury shares or shareholdings in subsidi-
aries, affiliates, parent companies and com-
panies under their management
As of 30.09.2017, the Group does not hold treasury shares 
or other shares or stakes in parent companies. Neither has it 

Workforce 
as of

30.09. 
2017

Workforce 
as of

30.09. 
2016

Europe Energy S.p.A.  
(Milano, San Martino B.A. (VR), 
Padova)

53 69

Europe Energy Sales 
Management S.r.l.  
(PD, MO, San Martino B.A. (VR)

3 4

Total 58 73

With reference to the period reviewed, please note that:
- there were no injuries or deaths in the workplace for 

which the Group is directly responsible;
- there were no charges for occupational illnesses involving 

employees (including former ones) which construe direct 
responsibility for the Group;

- there were no cases of mobbing for which the Group has 
been declared permanently responsible.

Milan, 24 January 2018
The Sole Director
(Matteo Ballarin)
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10/ Consolidated  
 Balance Sheet 
 as of  
 30 September 2017

Notes 30/09/2017 30/09/2016

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Tangible assets 1 1,064,736 974,748

Land 290,788 220,788

Buildings 627,082 642,412

Plant and machinery 6,204 3,146

Vehicles 31,394 3,820

Other Buildings, Plant and Machinery 109,268 104,582

Intangible assets 2 9,154,074 697,110

Patents, Trademarks and Other Rights 50,862 27,843

Other assets 63,000 0

Goodwill 9,040,212 669,267

Financial assets 3 764,551 1,380,179

Investments 764,551 1,380,179

Deferred tax assets 4 559,442 399,248

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,542,803 3,451,285

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventory 5 1,611,332 653,771

Financial assets 6 9,798,238 1,892,084

Current assets held for sale 7 0 18,965

Tax receivables 8 5,156,149 6,551,755

Accounts receivable 9 29,851,519 42,990,312

Cash and cash equivalents 10 4,960,797 7,209,836

Other assets 11 24,051,347 12,522,615

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,429,444 71,839,338

 

TOTAL ASSETS 86,972,247 75,290,623

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES STATEMENT

follows >
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Notes 30/09/2017 30/09/2016

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 12

Share capital 1,908,730 1,908,730

Other reserves 11,015,286 9,462,357

Profit (loss) carried forward -425 -1,803

Reserve for actuarial gains (losses) -27,996 -11,763

Operating profit (loss) 2,581,047 1,341,919

Group Shareholders’ Equity 15,476,644 12,699,440

Shareholders’ Equity and net profit (loss) for the period  
attributable to minority interests

0 0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 15,476,644 12,699,440

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current financial payables 13 639,779 189,058

Provision for risks and charges 14 20,894 268,623

Severance pay and other employee benefits 15 381,096 223,514

Deferred tax liabilities 16 93,452 61,428

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,135,221 742,623

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current financial payables 17 30,367,402 14,878,465

Tax payables 18 654,262 191,912

Accounts payable 19 36,301,879 44,790,969

Other liabilities 20 3,036,777 1,987,214

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 70,360,320 61,848,560

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 71,495,541 62,591,183

 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 86,972,247 75,290,623

>
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Notes 30/09/2017 30/09/2016

 

REVENUES AND INCOME 295,347,916 444,093,873

Revenues from sales and services 21 294,026,231 442,960,108

Other revenues and income 22 1,321,685 1,133,765

OPERATING COSTS 291,161,190 442,018,096

Cost of raw materials, supplies, goods 23 279,195,131 429,755,655

Other operating costs 24 9,018,605 8,861,957

Personnel costs 25 2,947,454 3,400,484

GROSS OPERATING MARGIN 4,186,726 2,075,777

Amortisation, depreciation and other provisions  26 144,814 99,116

GROSS OPERATING MARGIN 4,041,912 1,976,661

Financial income 27 146,014 549,595

Financial expenses 28 -513,425 -750,326

NET FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES -367,411 -200,731

Income (expenses) from investments 29 88,492 -165,267

Financial income (expenses) from Group companies 30 303,372 110,603

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 4,066,364 1,721,266

Fiscal Expenses / (Income) 31 1,485,317 379,347

NET PROFIT 2,581,047 1,341,919

 

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS  
OF THE PARENT COMPANY AND MINORITY INTERESTS

2,581,047 1,341,919

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTERESTS 0 0

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 
   OF THE PARENT COMPANY

2,581,047 1,341,919

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 30/09/2017 30/09/2016

NET PROFIT 2,581,047 1,341,919

INCOME STATEMENT

(AMOUNTS IN UNITS OF EURO)
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Notes 30/09/2017 30/09/2016

Other components of comprehensive income: 0

A) CHANGES IN CASH-FLOW HEDGE RESERVE 0 0

- Profit (loss) from asset items in period 0 0

- Taxes (+/-) 0 0

B) ACTUARIAL GAINS (LOSSES) -16,234 -11,763

- Actuarial gains (losses) -16,234 -11,763

TOTAL OTHER COMPONENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME AFTER TAXES -16,234 -11,763 

TOTAL NET INCOME 2,564,813 1,330,156 

    

Milan, 24 January 2018
The Sole Director
(Matteo Ballarin)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2017   |
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Organisation and Business of the Company

Dear Shareholders,
the consolidated financial statements that we submit for 
your approval, which comprise the Assets and Liabilities 
Statement, the Income Statement, the Comprehensive 
Income Statement, the Cash-Flow Statement, these 
Explanatory Notes and the Report of the Board, and which 
report a profit after taxes of Euro 2,581,047 and a net 
equity as of 30 September 2017 of Euro 15,476,644, has 
been drafted in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) based on the text 
published in the Official Journal of the European Union 
(G.U.C.E.). 
As mentioned in the Report of the Board, these are the 
third consolidated financial statements drafted by the Eu-
rope Energy Holding Group and have been prepared by the 
Parent company Europe Energy Holding S.r.l., assuming 
6 September 2012 as the date in which Europe Energy 
Holding S.r.l. “officially” took over control of the sub-group 
Europe Energy S.p.A.  
More specifically, the Group controls an operating company, 
Europe Energy S.p.A., which in turn controls other Italian 
and foreign companies, as mentioned in the Report of the 
Board.
Please note also that the Group owns a stake in LE Trad-
ing A.S., an operating company located in the Balkans and 
which in turn has branch offices in several countries in the 
Balkan region. 
This year, on 8 June 2017, Europe Energy & Gas Power 
S.p.A. formalised the definitive purchase from Gascom S.r.l. 
in liquidation of the company operating in the energy and 
natural gas trading sector previously leased out to Europe 
Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. with deed issued by the Notary 
Gottardo in Padua. The acquisition in question definitively 
brings the Gascom affair to an end.
On 12 June 2017, Europe Energy Holding S.r.l., as the sole 
shareholder of Europe Energy S.p.A., approved an increase 
of the latter company’s share capital from Euro 3,5 million 
to Euro 5 million.
The Company subsequently also proceeded with the merg-
er by incorporation of Europe Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. 
into Europe Energy S.p.A., effective as of 1 July 2017. The 
effects of this merger on the corporate accounts are repre-
sented as of 1 October 2016, which is the 1st day of the fi-
nancial year. Such representation in our accounting records 
is permitted by the provisions of the Document Assirevi OPI 
1 Revised regarding Business Combinations Under Com-
mon Control.

For the second year in a row, these financial statements 
have been drafted in accordance with the international ac-
counting standards, even though the parent company has 

prepared the balance sheet by applying the Italian account-
ing standards, as usual.

Scope of consolidation
The companies included in the consolidated financial 
statements are listed below:

Parent company:
- EUROPE ENERGY HOLDING S.R.L. - registered office in 
Milan, Via Fratelli Gabba, 6. 
The Group’s business involves:
a) the trade and distribution of electricity, gas (including 

imports) and of any other energy carrier in any form, 
including electronically through the platforms of Ital-
ian and foreign stock exchanges, as well as the trade of 
green certificates, white certificates and CO2 emissions 
certificates (so-called “emission trading”).

b) the sale of derivative financial instruments for any type 
of energy carrier and/or product, though not as core busi-
ness, not for placement purposes and not towards the 
public, with the exception of private savings collection 
reserved by law to banks and financial institutes;

c) the provision of post-meter/after-sales services on in-
stalled systems and technology-related, including for the 
purpose of increasing efficiency and rationalising energy 
consumption, and including certification and the issue 
of “white certificates” and in any case, of all activities 
normally conducted by an ESCO (energy saving compa-
ny);

d) the provision of consulting services and technical assis-
tance on:
1. energy issues and related pricing strategies, self-pro-

duction, cogeneration, energy savings and recoveries;
2. studies on the trend of domestic and international 

markets of energy products;
3. management and corporate planning and production 

related to the activities mentioned above;
e) the construction, operation and maintenance of electri-

cal power plants and supply of electricity to public or 
private entities.

As part of its business, the Company may also:
- design, build, manage and service electrical power 

plants;
- carry out feasibility studies;
- file requests for all necessary authorisations;
- develop and complete projects and install plants in the 

field of energy saving and power generation in all its 
forms, with a key focus on environmental protection and 
the use of renewable energy sources, and organise staff 
training and refresher courses;

- provide services for the accounting and distribution of 
energy costs and the collection of the applicable taxes, 
both directly and on behalf of third parties;

f) the purchase, sale and management of real estate, in-

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |
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cluding both direct and indirect construction and ren-
ovation of its own property or owned by third parties, 
for civil, industrial, agricultural and retail use typically 
aimed at their sale, exchange and management, in-
cluding through concessions of various kinds to third 
parties;

g) the purchase, sale and management of land and farms 
and their lease;

h) the conduct of all commercial, industrial, financial, real 
estate and securities transactions deemed necessary or 
useful for the achievement of the corporate purpose, 
including the provision of collateral (real and personal 
guarantees), also for the benefit of third parties;

i) the acquisition of stakes (including shares) and the pur-
chase of shares from other companies, provided not as 
core business and in any case, in compliance with and 
within the limits of the applicable legislation, with the 
exclusion of credit supply, public savings collection and 
the sale of shares, interests and stakes of any type of 
company to third parties; 

j) the direct execution of all those actions aimed at obtain-
ing discounts or benefits of any sort granted by region-
al offices, the Italian Government and European Union 
to favour its production and lines of business, with the 
right to request and obtain administrative grants, sign 
any type of contract or agreement with any entity, pub-
lic administration or private operator, mutual companies 
and agencies.

Scope of consolidation:
The companies included in the scope of consolidation are 
owned either directly by Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. or in-
directly through its subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A.
The whole group has mainly aimed at developing its trading 
in electricity, gas and other energy carriers on the platforms 
of Italian and foreign stock exchanges, and the trade in 
green certificates, white certificates, CO2 emissions certif-
icates (so-called “emission trading”) and related hedging 
financial instruments, besides retail sales and dispatching 
of energy and natural gas to end users.

Company
Date of 

incorporation 
/ acquisition

%  
stake as of 

30/09/2017
Main line of business 

    

Europe Energy Sales Management S.r.l. (*) 12/01/2012 100% Trading EE/Agency

Brenno Power S.r.l. (*) 07/02/2012 100% Trading EE

Cognolo Energia S.r.l. (*) 07/02/2012 100% Trading EE

Pieve Idroenergia S.r.l. (*) 02/08/2012 100% Trading EE

SMBA Energy S.r.l. (*) 21/09/2012 100% Trading EE

Europe Energy Efficiency S.r.l. (*) 17/07/2012 100% EE Trading/Energy efficiency

Europe Energy Gas & Power S.r.l.  
(formerly ECG Energy S.r.l.) - Romania (*)

24/08/2017 63% Sale of energy and natural gas

(*) Stake owned through subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A.
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Once these consolidated financial statements were drafted, 
the management proceeded to draft a “sub-consolidated” 
balance sheet of the “subgroup Europe Energy S.p.A.”, 
making the following consolidation adjustments:
- aggregation of financial statements of the subsidiaries in 

Europe Energy S.p.A.;
- cancellation of shareholdings held by the Group in the 

subsidiaries referred to above;
- cancellation of the mutual economic and financial bal-

ances.

This “sub-consolidated” balance sheet was then incorporat-
ed into the balance sheet of the Parent company, carrying 
out the following adjustments:
- cancellation of mutual economic and financial relations 

between the parent company and the companies includ-
ed in the scope of “sub-consolidation”;

- cancellation of “sub-consolidated” stake in Europe Ener-
gy S.p.A;

The effects of these adjustments are described in detail 
in the reconciliation statement of the Net Equity and 
operating profit, as resulting from the Parent company and 
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
- REFERENCE DATE
The consolidated financial statements closed on 30/09/2017, 
which is the closing date for all companies included in the 
scope of consolidation, except for the company Europe 
Energy Gas & Power S.r.l. (Romania), since the latter is a 
newly-formed company in its start-up phase.
With regard to the criteria applied in drafting the financial 
statements of the subsidiaries and the financial position of 
the Parent company, please refer to the above section of 
these Notes.

These Explanatory Notes are broken down into the following 
parts:
- part A: Consolidation principles;
- part B: Structure and content of the financial statements;
- part C: Assessment criteria;
- part D: Accounting standards, amendments and newly 

published interpretations;
- part E: Other information relevant to the preparation of 

the financial statements;
- part F: Information about the Assets and Liabilities;
- part G: Information about the Income Statement;
- part H: Risk management and other information;

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |

PART A
Consolidation principles

For subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial 
statements, the Board applied the method of “full” 
consolidation, which, as mentioned earlier, provides for 
the inclusion in the financial statements of the parent 
company of the financial statements of its subsidiaries, and 
consequently for the replacement of the item “Investments” 
offset by the respective items under the Net Equity.
Deleting the item “Investments” led to a number of 
differences in the consolidation, as described more in detail 
further on in these Notes.
Reciprocal financial and economic items originating from 
relations between the fully consolidated companies were 
cancelled. 

The closing date of the balance sheet of the companies 
included in the scope of consolidation is the same as the 
closing date of the consolidated balance sheet.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are companies directly controlled by the Group, 
as defined by IFRS 10 (consolidated financial statements). 
This control is based on the simultaneous presence of the 
following three elements: (a) power over the subsidiary; (b) 
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement 
with the given subsidiary; (c) ability to use the power to 
influence the amount of such variable returns. The financial 
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 
balance sheet from the date on which the Group assumes 
control until the time in which the subsidiary ceases to exist. 
The shares of net equity and the operating profit attributable 
to minority shareholders are reported separately in the assets 
and liabilities statement and in the income statement.

Affiliates
These are companies on which the Group has a significant 
influence, but not full or joint control, over their financial 
and operating policies, as defined in IAS 28 (Investments 
in affiliates).
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PART B 
Structure and content  
of the financial statements

General principles
The criteria generally applied when accounting for the 
assets and liabilities is the historical cost, except for 
certain financial instruments for which, for the purposes of 
standard IAS 39 (financial instruments), the criteria of Fair 
Value is applied. Please note that at the date of transition 
to the IAS/IFRS, some assets were calculated at their Fair 
Value instead of their historical cost.
Below is a description of the layouts used when drafting 
the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with those 
specified by standard IAS 1 and of the most significant 
accounting standards and assessment criteria applied.

Financial statements - formats and layout
The Income Statement is prepared using the layout for 
the classification of revenues and costs by type of item, 
highlighting the interim results relating to EBITDA, the 
operating profit and profit before taxes, so as to provide 
a more accurate representation of the Company’s normal 
trend of business. The layout chosen, in fact, is consistent 
with the Company’s internal reporting policy and business 
management, and with standard international practice in 
the energy industry.

The Comprehensive Income Statement includes any 
changes of Other comprehensive profit (or loss) during the 
year, suspended in the net equity. 

The financial position was prepared using the layout that 
highlights the allocation of assets and liabilities under 
“current/non-current assets”. An asset/liability is classified 
as current when it meets one of the following criteria:
• the Company expects its accrual/expiry or to sell or use it 

in the normal business cycle, or;
• is held primarily for negotiating purposes, or;
• the Company expects its accrual/expiry within 12 months 

from the balance sheet’s closing date.

In the absence of all three conditions, the given asset/
liability is classified as a non-current asset/liability.

The Cash Flow statement has been prepared using the 
indirect method.

The Statement of Changes in Equity shows the changes in 
net equity items that refer to:
• distribution of the operating profit;
• amounts referring to transactions with shareholders (pur-

chase and sale of treasury shares);
• each item of profit and loss net of any fiscal effects which, 

as required by the IAS/IFRS, are alternately charged di-
rectly to Net Equity (actuarial gains and losses generated 
by the evaluation of fixed benefit plans) or that have their 
counterpart in an equity reserve (effect of transactions 
under common control), the impact of which is then re-
flected directly in the net equity;

• changes in revaluation reserves of derivative instruments 
to hedge future cash flows, net of any fiscal effects;

• the effect caused by possible changes in the accounting 
standards.

• For each significant item listed in the above statements, 
we have included a reference to these Explanatory Notes, 
which provide the required information and a detailed de-
scription of the structure and changes compared to the 
previous year.

PART C
Assessment criteria

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are booked at their cost of purchase, 
production or contribution, and include any incidental and 
direct costs necessary to make the asset available for use, 
and net of any contributions in kind.
Depreciation was calculated based on the possibility of 
using the assets to which it refers: this notion of depreciation 
translates into a percentage per year of the useful life of the 
assets depreciated when drafting the balance sheet. The 
range of depreciation rates is shown in the table below:

The gains and losses on the sale and disposal of fixed assets 
are calculated as the difference between revenues from 
sales and the net book value of the asset, and are listed in 
the income statement for the given accounting period.

Depreciation 
rate

  

 Plant and machinery 25%

 Electronic office equipment 20%

 Furniture and fixtures 15%

 Vehicles 25%

 Assets worth less than Euro 516.46 100%
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If there are indicators of impairment, tangible assets are 
subject to an impairment test. The test is described in the 
paragraph “Impairment of assets”. Impairment may be 
subject to subsequent reversal of impairment.

The financial leasing agreement signed for the building 
located in San Martino Buon Albergo (VR) is reported in 
the balance sheet according to the financial method, as 
required by IAS 17, which provides for the purchase of the 
leased asset, debt financing and reporting of the financial 
expense in the income statement.

Intangible assets
Goodwill
In the case of corporate acquisitions, the assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities acquired and identifiable are 
measured at their Fair Value on the date of acquisition. 
The positive difference between the cost of purchase and 
the Company’s stake in the Fair Value of these assets and 
liabilities is classified as goodwill and is listed in the balance 
sheet as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life.
Goodwill is not depreciated but is calculated annually, or 
more frequently if specific events or changed circumstances 
point to a likely loss of value, in order to identify any 
impairment, in accordance with IAS 36 (Impairment of 
assets). For more information, please see the paragraph 
“Impairment of assets”.
The original value, however, is not restored if the reasons 
that led to the impairment no longer apply.
After its initial calculation, goodwill is measured at cost 
net of any accumulated impairment losses. At the time of 
transfer of a part or the entire company previously acquired 
and whose acquisition generated goodwill, in determining 
the gain or loss on disposal, the corresponding residual 
value of goodwill is taken into account. 
On first-time adoption of the IFRS, the Company chose 
not to apply IFRS 3 - Corporate mergers retrospectively to 
acquisitions of companies that took place before 1 October 
2014, choosing to opt for the exemption provided for by 
IFRS 1. As a result, goodwill generated by acquisitions 
before the date of transition to the IFRS was kept at 
the value previously calculated according to the Italian 
accounting standards, subject to an audit and calculation 
of any arising impairment.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets with a fixed useful life purchased or 
manufactured entirely are listed under the assets, in 
accordance with IAS 38 (Intangible assets), when it is likely 
that their use will generate future economic benefits and their 
cost can be measured reliably. These assets are measured 
at their cost of purchase or production and depreciated on 
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which 
shall be reviewed at least once a year. Any changes in the 

depreciation criteria are applied prospectively. The period of 
depreciation of intangible assets listed in the Balance sheet 
varies from 3 to 5 years. 

Intangible assets with fixed useful life are also audited to 
identify any impairment once a year, or whenever there 
is reason to believe that the asset may have suffered 
impairment, in accordance with IAS 36. For more 
information, please refer to the paragraph “Impairment of 
assets”. If the reasons that had justified the impairment no 
longer apply in following years, the asset is restored to its 
original value, within the limits of the value that the asset 
would have had if the impairment had never taken place.

Other intangible assets booked in the balance sheet after 
the acquisition of a company are listed separately from 
goodwill, if their Fair Value can be measured reliably.

Industrial patent and intellectual property rights
These rights consist of permanent software licenses whose 
depreciation is calculated over three years starting from the 
financial year in which the cost was incurred.

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar rights
This item refers to the cost for the permanent license on the 
software used to manage the Company’s “core business” 
subject to depreciation according to a five-year plan starting 
from the year in which the license was purchased.

Financial assets
Investments
Investments in other companies that are classified as non-
current financial assets not allocated to trading (so-called 
investments available for sale) are initially booked at their 
Fair Value, and gains and losses arising from changes in 
Fair Value are booked directly under equity as long as they 
are sold or have suffered a loss of value. At the date, gains 
or losses previously booked under net equity are listed in 
the income statement for the accounting period.
Investments in other smaller companies for which there is 
no Fair Value are booked in the Income Statement at their 
cost inclusive of any impairment losses. 

Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, if the conditions apply, 
the Company reviews the carrying value of its tangible 
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered impairment 
(so-called “Impairment test”), in accordance with IAS 36 
(Impairment of assets). 
The impairment test helps estimate the recoverable amount 
of these assets to calculate any amount of impairment. When 
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
asset individually, the Company estimates the recoverable 
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amount of the so-called “CGU - Cash Generating Unit” to 
which the asset belongs.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the Fair Value less 
the costs of sale and the value in use of the asset or CGU. 

The value in use of an asset or a CGU is the current value of 
the expected cash flows calculated by applying a discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. Future cash flows 
refer to those expected over a given time span between 
three and five years, as well as those taken from the last 
year of the time span used to estimate the final value. 

The long-term growth rate used for the purpose of estimating 
the final value of the cash-generating unit is taken to an 
extent not exceeding the average rate of long-term growth 
in the industry, country or market where the asset or the 
cash-generating unit operates.
The value in use of the asset or CGU in a foreign currency 
is estimated by discounting these flows on the basis of an 
appropriate exchange rate for that currency. The current 
value thus obtained is translated into Euros on the basis 
of the spot rate at the reporting date of the calculated 
impairment.
Future cash flows are estimated with reference to the 
current conditions of the cash-generating unit and as such, 
neither the benefits of future restructuring plans for which 
the entity still does not have a commitment nor future 
investments for improvement or optimisation of the unit are 
factored in the calculation.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated 
to be less than its carrying amount, the latter is reduced to 
a lower recoverable amount. An impairment loss is booked 
in the income statement immediately. 
When an impairment no longer has reason to be maintained, 
the carrying amount of the asset or CGU, with the exception 
of goodwill, is increased to the new value obtained from the 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but is never higher than 
the net book value that the asset or CGU would have had if 
it the write-down for impairment had not been applied. The 
restored value is charged to the income statement, unless 
the asset is valued at the adjusted amount, in which case 
the reversal is ascribed to the revaluation reserve.

Inventory
Inventories are booked at their specific cost of purchase 
or the presumable value of realisation, depending on the 
market trend, whichever is lesser.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any agreement that generates a 
financial asset for a company and a financial liability or 
equity instrument for another company.

Financial assets
A financial asset is any asset representative of the following:
cash and cash equivalents;
• a contractual right to receive cash or another type of fi-

nancial asset from another entity;
• a contractual right to exchange financial instruments with 

another entity under potentially favourable conditions;  
• an instrument representative of the net equity of another 

company;
• a contract (including hedges) that is or can be adjusted 

with the company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities and net equity
A financial liability is any liability that is representative of a 
contractual obligation to:
• pay cash or another financial asset to another company;
• exchange financial instruments with another entity under 

potentially favourable conditions; 
• a contract (including hedges) that is or can be adjusted 

with the company’s own equity instruments.
An equity instrument is a contract that represents a share of 
residual interest in the assets of a company after deduction 
of its liabilities. These include, for example, shares or rights 
to purchase or subscribe shares of the company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities booked at their Fair 
Value when the contractual rights and obligations provided 
for by the instrument accrue.
Their initial reporting takes into account the transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition and the 
issuing costs that are included in the initial assessment of 
all assets and liabilities defined as financial instruments. 
Subsequent evaluation depends on the type of instrument. 
More specifically:
• assets held for trading, excluding derivative instruments, 

are listed at their Fair Value with any changes in Fair Val-
ue accounted for in the Income statement. This category 
mainly comprises trading shares and so-called trading 
activities discussed below;

• other financial assets and financial liabilities other than 
derivatives and investments with fixed or quantifiable 
payments are listed at their depreciated cost. Any trans-
action fees incurred during acquisition/sale are factored 
as direct nominal value adjustment of the given asset/
liability. Financial income/expenses are then recalculated 
applying the actual interest rate method. This category 
includes non-current loans and receivables, trade receiv-
ables and other receivables generated by the Company, 
financial payables, trade payables and other payables, 
and other financial liabilities;

• assets available for sale are listed at their Fair Value and 
the gains and losses they generate are accounted for un-
der net equity, more specifically under “Other compre-
hensive income items”. The Fair Value is booked in the 
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income statement on the actual date of sale. The impair-
ment losses in Fair Value are listed directly in the income 
statement whenever there is objective evidence that a fi-
nancial asset has suffered impairment, even if the asset 
has not been sold yet. Unlisted equity investments for 
which the Fair Value is not readily quantifiable instead 
are listed at the reduced cost due to long-term impair-
ment.

All derivative financial instruments are listed at their Fair 
Value, as established by the aforementioned standard IAS 
39.
The assessment principles used by the company for the 
purpose of measuring Fair Value make leverage as much as 
possible on the “market” data and, on the other hand, rely 
as little as possible on specific inputs within the Company. 
In fact, to calculate the Fair Value of these contracts, the 
Company uses the settlement price of the stock exchanges 
(IDEX for Italy and EEX for France and Germany). 
For hedges consisting of “over the counter” contracts, 
which are not listed on active markets, and therefore 
deprive the Company of an official and consistent stock 
exchange listing, the Company uses the prices for each 
product type of the last significant amount negotiated as 
of 30/09/2017 (“last trade”) by the main Italian market 
operating broker, i.e. Tradition Financial Services Ltd., as 
reference value. The Fair Value for these instruments was 
therefore calculated as the difference between the contract 
price and the price of the “last trade”.

The Company eliminates a financial asset from the balance 
sheet when it transfers the contractual right to receive cash 
flows relating to the same or when the right expires. When a 
financial asset is transferred, the level to which the risks and 
benefits that are inherent with owning the financial asset 
are transferred needs to be assessed. More specifically:
• If the Company substantially transfers all the risks and 

benefits of ownership of the financial asset, it eliminates 
the asset sold and separately factors any rights and obli-
gations created or maintained as a result of the transfer;

• If the Company substantially retains all the risks and ben-
efits of ownership of the financial asset, it continues to 
account for the asset.

Financial liabilities are removed from the assets and 
liabilities statement when the specific contractual 
obligation has expired. A contractual right expires also when 
changes are made to existing contractual terms, if the new 
terms have significantly changed the original terms and, 
at any rate, when the current value of the cash flows that 
the amended agreements will generate is more than 10% 
higher than the value of the discounted cash flows of the 
original liability.
The Fair Value of financial instruments traded on an active 
market is based on the market prices at the balance sheet 

date. The Fair Value of instruments not traded on an active 
market is calculated by applying the appropriate evaluation 
methods.

Accounting standard IFRS 7 (financial instruments: 
disclosures) requires a description of the goals, policies and 
procedures applied by the  Company for the different types 
of financial risks (liquidity, market and credit) to which 
the Company is exposed, including a sensitivity analysis 
for each type of market risk (foreign currency exchange, 
interest rate, equity, commodity) and information regarding 
the minimum and maximum concentration and average 
exposures to various types of risk during the accounting 
period, if the exposure at the end of the period is not 
sufficiently representative.
Accounting standard IAS 1 regulates, among other things, 
the obligation to provide information about the goals, policies 
and processes for managing capital, specifying, if capital 
requirements are imposed by third parties, the nature and the 
methods of management and any consequences of failure 
to comply with them. For the qualitative and quantitative 
analysis, please refer to the section “Information about 
financial risks” and the information contained in the Report 
of the Board.

Employee benefits
Severance pay and pensions are calculated by applying an 
actuarial method. The amount of rights over the accounting 
period by employees is listed in the income statement un-
der the item personnel costs, while the figurative financial 
burden that the Company would incur if it were to request 
a loan for the same amount of the severance pay is listed 
under the net financial income (expenses). Actuarial gains 
and losses that reflect the effects of changes in the actu-
arial assumptions applied are listed under comprehensive 
income, taking into account the average number of years 
that employees are expected to continue working for the 
Company.

More specifically, after the introduction of Financial Law 
No. 296 dated 27 December 2006, the Company has cal-
culated only the liability for severance pay accrued and 
deposited with the Company for the purposes of IAS 19, 
as the share accrued has been paid to a separate institute 
(supplementary pension fund or INPS - Italian social insur-
ance and security fund). As a result of these payments, the 
Company will no longer have obligations for work performed 
by employees in the future (so-called defined contribution 
plan).

Provisions for risks and charges
The Company factors risks and charges whenever it has 
an obligation, legal or implicit, for a past event, when it is 
probable that a use of resources will be required to fulfil the 
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obligation, and when a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. This obligation can be legal, 
contractual or derive from the Company’s conduct statements 
such to lead the third parties to reasonably expect that the 
Company is responsible or assumes responsibility to fulfil 
an obligation (so-called “implicit obligations”).
Changes in estimates are reflected in the income statement 
in the period in which the change occurred.
Provisions, if the financial effect of time is significant, are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at 
a discount rate that reflects the current market assessment 
of the cost of borrowing in relation to the time and the effect 
of discounting is listed under borrowing costs.

Costs and revenue
Revenues and income, costs and expenses are entered net 
of returns, discounts, rebates and premiums, as well as 
taxes directly associated with the sale of products and the 
provision of services. 
revenues from sales of goods are included when the 
significant risks and benefits tied with their ownership are 
transferred to the buyer.
Financial income and expenses are listed on an accruals 
basis using the amount financed and the effective interest 
rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the 
estimated future cash receipts/payments over the expected 
life of the financial asset/liability to restore them to the book 
value of the given asset.
Dividends are accounted for when the right to receive a 
payment from shareholders that is normally processed 
during the year in which the shareholders of the subsidiary 
meet to decide on the distribution of profits or reserves.

Taxes and levies
Income taxes for the year consist of the sum of current and 
deferred taxes:
• current taxes are based on the taxable operating profit in 

the accounting period. Taxable income may differ from 
the operating profit reported in the income statement due 
to the positive and negative items that will be taxable or 
deductible in other accounting periods and also excludes 
items that are never taxable or deductible. The liability 
for current taxes is calculated using the rates applicable 
on the closing date of the balance sheet;

• prepaid and deferred taxes are taxes that the Company 
expects to pay or to recover on the temporary differences 
between the book value of the assets and liabilities and 
the corresponding tax base used to calculate the taxable 
income determined by applying the tax rates in force at 
the time when the temporary differences will accrue or 
expire.

In addition, deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary 
differences arising between the tax base of an asset or a 
liability and the book value that appears in the balance sheet, 
with the exception of goodwill, which is not deductible, and 
those differences arising from investments in subsidiaries 
for which cancellation is not expected in the foreseeable 
future. Deferred tax assets are listed to the extent that it is 
considered likely that there will be future taxable tax results 
that allow the use of deductible temporary differences.
The book value of deferred tax assets is reviewed on the 
closing dare of every balance sheet and reduced to the 
extent that the achievement of sufficient taxable income 
to allow all or part of the recovery of such assets is deemed 
unlikely.
Deferred taxes are booked directly in the income statement, 
except for those relating to items booked directly under 
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is 
also booked under other comprehensive income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when they refer to taxes owed to the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to liquidate the 
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
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PART D
Accounting standards, amendments
and newly published interpretations 

Accounting standards and amendments applicable from 1 
January 2016
The following accounting standards, amendments and in-
terpretations of the IFRS were applied for the first time by 
the Company as of 1 October 2015:
• Amendments to IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabili-

ties and Contingent Assets” (published on 21 November 
2013) and concerning the accounting of provisions as 
liabilities with an uncertain expiry or amount.

• Amendments to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans: Employ-
ee Contributions” (published on 21 November 2013) 
concerning the accounting of contributions made by 
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. 

• Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – “Ac-
counting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations” 
(published on 6 May 2014) concerning the accounting 
of the acquisition of interests in a joint operation which 
constitutes a business. 

• Amendments to IAS 16 – Property, plant and Equip-
ment and IAS 38 – Intangible Assets – “Clarification of 
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation” 
(published on 12 May 2014) according to which a de-
preciation method based on revenues is considered in-
appropriate because generally, the revenue generated by 
an asset that includes the use of the asset depreciated 
generally reflects factors other than just the consump-
tion of economic benefits of the given asset, which is, 
however, required for depreciation. The adoption of this 
amendment did not have an effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.

• Amendment to IAS 1 – “Disclosure Initiative” (published 
on 18 December 2014): the goal of the amendments is 
to clarify elements of information that may be perceived 
as impediments to a clear and intelligible drafting of the 
balance sheets. The adoption of this amendment did not 
have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.

• Lastly, as part of the annual process of improvement of 
the standards, on 12 December 2013, the IASB pub-
lished the document “Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 
2010-2012 Cycle” (including IFRS 2 Share Based Pay-
ments – Definition of vesting condition, IFRS 3 Busi-
ness Combinations – Accounting for contingent consid-
eration, IFRS 8 Operating segments – Aggregation of 
operating segments and Reconciliation of reportable 
segments’ assets to the total of the entity’s assets, IFRS 
13 Fair Value Measurement – Short-term receivables 
and payables) and on 25 September 2014, the doc-
ument “Annual Improvements to IFRSs : 2012-2014 
Cycle” (including: IFRS 5 – Non-current Assets Held for 

Sale and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 – Financial 
Instruments: Disclosure and IAS 19 – Employee Bene-
fits), which partly supplement existing principles.

IFRS and IFRIC accounting standards, amendments and 
interpretations approved by the European Union, the ap-
plication of which is not yet compulsory and which were 
not adopted retrospectively by the Group
• Standard IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Cus-

tomers (published on 28 May 2014 and supplemented 
with further clarifications published on 12 April 2016) 
will replace IAS 18 – Revenue and IAS 11 – Construc-
tion Contracts, as well as the interpretations of IFRIC 
13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 – Agree-
ments for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 – 
Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 – Reve-
nues-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 
The standard establishes a new model for accounting 
revenues that will apply to all contracts concluded with 
customers except those that fall within the scope of oth-
er IAS/IFRS such as lease agreements, insurance con-
tracts and financial instruments. The basic steps for the 
accounting of revenues according to the new model are:
- identification of the contract with the customer;
- identification of the contract’s performance obliga-

tions;
- pricing;
- allocation of the price of the contract’s performance 

obligations;
- criteria for inclusion of revenue when the entity satis-

fies each performance obligation.
The standard will apply from 1 January 2018 but earli-
er application is permitted. Although the Directors have 
not completed the systematic analysis of the case and, in 
particular, a detailed analysis of customer contracts, they 
do not expect the application of IFRS 15 will have a signif-
icant impact on the amounts entered under revenue and 
on the information contained in the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements.
• Final version of IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (pub-

lished on 24 July 2014). The document incorporates 
the results of the stages involved in classification and 
measurement, Impairment and Hedge accounting of the 
IASB’s plans to replace IAS 39:
- introduces a new set of principles for classifying and 

calculating corporate financial assets and liabilities.
- with reference to the impairment model, the new 

standard requires companies to estimate credit losses 
based on the model of expected losses (and not along 
the lines of the  incurred losses model applied by IAS 
39), relying on information that can be substantiated 
and that are available without unreasonable effort or 
expense, including the historical data, both current 
and forecast;

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |
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- introduces a new model of hedge accounting (incre-
ment of the types of transactions eligible for hedge 
accounting, change of accounting method of forward 
contracts and options when included in a hedge ac-
counting relationship, changes to the effectiveness 
test) 

- the criteria for inclusion of revenue when the entity 
satisfies each performance obligation.

The new standard should be applied to financial state-
ments beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpreta-
tions not yet adopted by the European Union
On the closing date of these financial statements, the 
competent bodies of the European Union had not yet ap-
proved application of the amendments and accounting 
standards described below.
• On 13 January 2016, the IASB published IFRS 16 – 

Leases that will replace IAS 17 – Leases, as well as 
the interpretations of IFRIC 4 Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC- 15 Operating Leas-
es — Incentives and SIC- 27 Evaluating the Substance 
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 

 The new standard provides a new definition of lease and 
introduces a criteria based on the control (right of use) 
of an asset for distinguishing lease agreements from 
service agreements, identifying the following discrimi-
nating factors: the identification of the right, the right 
to replacement thereof, the right to substantially receive 
all of the economic benefits arising from the use of the 
asset, and the right of direct use of the asset covered by 
the agreement.

 The standard establishes a single model for the ac-
counting and evaluation of lease agreements for the 
tenant (lessee) that provides for the inclusion of the as-
set covered by the operating lease under assets with a 
financial debt as offset account, while also providing the 
option of not considering agreements for “low-value as-
sets” and leases with a term of or less than 12 months 
as lease agreements. Instead, the Standard does not in-
troduce significant changes for landlords (lessors).

 The standard applies from 1 January 2019 but earli-
er application is permitted, only for Companies/Groups 
that have applied IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers in advance to the scheduled date. The 
Directors expect that the application of IFRS 16 may 
have a significant impact on accounting for leases and 
related information contained in the Group’s consolidat-
ed financial statements. However, it is not possible to 
provide a reasonable estimate of the actual effects until 
the Company has completed a detailed analysis of the 
relevant contracts.

• On 18 December 2014 ,the IASB published the docu-
ment “Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 

Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 
28)” (published on 18 December 2014), which intro-
duces amendments relating to issues raised as a result 
of the application of the consolidation exceptions grant-
ed to investment entities. 

• On 19 January 2016, the IASB published the docu-
ment “Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unreal-
ised Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)”, which introduc-
es changes to international accounting standard IAS 
12.  The document aims to provide some clarifications 
on the accounting of deferred tax assets on unrealised 
losses upon the occurrence of certain circumstances 
and on the estimated taxable income for future years. 
The changes will apply as of 1 January 2017 but early 
adoption is permitted. 

• On 29 January 2016, the IASB published the document 
“Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)”, which 
introduces changes to international accounting stand-
ard IAS 7. The document is meant to provide certain 
clarifications in order to improve the information on fi-
nancial liabilities. More specifically, the changes require 
Companies/Groups to provide information that enables 
users of the financial statements to understand changes 
in liabilities arising from financing operations. 

• On 20 June 2016, the IASB published the document 
“Classification and measurement of share-based pay-
ment transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2)”, which 
includes some clarifications in connection with the ac-
counting of effects of vesting conditions in the presence 
of cash-settled share-based payments, the classification 
of share-based payments with characteristics of net set-
tlements and the accounting of changes to the terms 
and conditions of a share-based payment that modify 
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The 
changes will apply from 1 January 2018, although ret-
rospective application is permitted. 

PART E
Other information relevant to the preparation 
of the financial statements

Use of estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
requires that the Directors make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, costs, assets 
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities on the closing date of the consolidated financial 
statements. 
The estimates and assumptions are based on experience 
and other factors thought to be relevant. The actual results 
that appear in the balances therefore may differ from those 
estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed 
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from time to time and the effects of every variation are 
reflected in the income statement in the period in which 
the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that 
period, or even in subsequent periods if the revision 
affects both the current year and future results. 
Below is a summary of the critical evaluation processes 
applied by the Company in the process of applying the 
accounting standards insofar as concerns future events 
that are likely to have significant effects on the values 
reported in the consolidated financial statements or that 
can lead to significant value adjustments to the book 
value of the assets and liabilities in the year following the 
accounting period of the balance sheet.

Credit impairment fund
This item reflects the management’s estimate of the losses 
on the portfolio of loans to customers.  
Provisions are made against expected losses on 
receivables, estimated on the basis of past experience 
with regard to receivables with similar credit risk and the 
careful monitoring of the quality of the loan portfolio.
Though the provision is considered reasonable, the use 
of different assumptions or changes in the economic 
conditions may be reflected in changes in the provision 
for credit impairment and thus have an impact on 
the Company’s operating profit. The estimates and 
assumptions are reviewed from time to time and the effects 
of any changes are reflected in the income statement in 
the period concerned.

Recoverability of tangible and intangible assets 
Tangible and intangible assets are depreciated when 
events or changes in circumstances imply that their book 
value is not recoverable.
The type of events that can result in a write-down of assets 
include: change in business plans, changes in market 
prices and currency exchange rates that may result in 
lower operating performance, reduced plant use, changes, 
updates of the pharmaceutical regulatory framework, and 
changes in the cash-flow discount rates.
The decision whether to depreciate an asset and its 
quantification depend on highly uncertain assessments 
of the Directors of complex factors, including the future 
trend of prices and currency exchange rates, the impact 
of inflation and technological advances on production 
factors, production profiles and conditions of supply and 
demand on a global, national and regional level.
Depreciation is calculated by comparing the book value 
in the balance sheet for the asset or cash-generating unit 
to which it belongs, with its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of the Fair Value net of disposal costs, and 
the value in use calculated by discounting the expected 
cash flows resulting from the use of the asset or cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs, net of disposal 

costs. Expected cash flows are calculated in light of the 
information available at the time of the estimate and 
based on subjective judgements on the performance of 
future variables such as price, cost, demand growth rates 
and production profiles, and are discounted applying a 
rate after taxes that takes into account the risk inherent in 
the asset concerned.
The loss in the value of an asset is restored when there is 
reason to believe that its value has reduced or the asset 
no longer exists, or when there has been a change in the 
estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets 
As of 30 September 2017, the consolidated financial 
statements presents deferred tax assets that are related to 
the impact of temporary differences between the statutory 
values and their values booked for fiscal purposes, which 
can be used in subsequent years within the limits of the 
Company’s ability to generate taxable profits.
The assessment takes into account the recoverability of 
the above estimate of future taxable profits.

Pension plans
Severance pay can be classified as a defined benefit plan.
The Company applies different statistical assumptions 
and evaluation factors with the aim of anticipating future 
events for calculating charges, liabilities and assets 
relating to these plans. The assumptions concern the 
discount rate, the expected return on plan assets, and the 
rates of future salary increases. In addition, the Company’s 
actuarial consultants apply subjective factors, such as the 
relative rates of mortality and turnover.

Other balance sheet items
In addition to the items mentioned above, estimates were 
made:
• when calculating the useful life of tangible and intangi-

ble assets for the purpose of calculating depreciation;
• the unrealised profit/loss (Fair Value) of financial deriv-

atives.

Risk management
With reference to the information referred to in art. 2428, 
paragraph 2, number 6-bis of the Italian Civil Code, which 
calls for a description of the goals, policies and risks 
involved in financial risk management, please refer to 
the following paragraph “Information on financial risks”, 
which includes a detailed description,  and to the Report 
of the Board.

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |
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PART F
Information on Assets and Liabilities & Financial Situation

ASSETS 

Notes Current Period Current Previous

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Tangible assets 1 1,064,736 974,748

Land 290,788 220,788

Buildings 627,082 642,412

Plant and machinery 6,204 3,146

Vehicles 31,394 3,820

Other Buildings, Plant and Machinery 109,268 104,582

Intangible assets 2 9,154,074 697,110

Patents, Trademarks and Other Rights 50,862 27,843

Other assets 63,000 0

Goodwill 9,040,212 669,267

Financial assets 3 764,551 1,380,179

Investments 764,551 1,380,179

Deferred tax assets 4 559,442 399,248

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,542,803 3,451,285

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventory 5 1,611,332 653,771

Financial assets 6 9,798,238 1,892,084

Current assets held for sale 7 0 18,965

Tax receivables 8 5,156,149 6,551,755

Accounts receivable 9 29,851,519 42,990,312

Cash and cash equivalents 10 4,960,797 7,209,836

Other assets 11 24,051,347 12,522,615

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,429,444 71,839,338

TOTAL ASSETS 86,972,247 75,290,623

All items are listed in units of Euro.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1. Tangible assets
The item buildings, plant and machinery amounted to Euro 
1,064,736 (Euro 974,748 in the previous year) and is 
booked at the cost of purchase.

Tangible assets: breakdown by principle of evaluation

Current Period Previous Period

Land 290,788 220,788 

Buildings 627,082 642,412 

Plant and machinery 6,204 3,146 

Vehicles 31,394 3,820 

Other Buildings, Plant and Machinery 109,268 104,582 

Total 1,064,736 974,748 

Buildings, plant and equipment for functional use: variations

Land Buildings Plant and  
machinery

A. Starting balance 220,788 642,412 3,146 

B. Increase 70,000 104,633 4,620

B.1 Purchases 70,000 104,633 4,620

C. Decrease 0 -119,963 -1,562

C. 1 Consolidated sales and output 0 0 0

C.2 Depreciation 0 -119,963 -1,562

D. Inventory, closing balance 290,788 627,082 6,204

Vehicles Other Total

A. Starting balance 3,820 104,582 974,748

B. Increase 41,859 65,319 286,431

B.1 Purchases 41,859 65,319 286,431

C. Decrease -14,286 -60,633 -196,444

C. 1 Sales or consolidated outputs -8,722 -8,722

C.2 Depreciation -5,564 -60,633 -187,722

D. Inventory, closing balance 31,393 109,268 1,064,736

The item’s structure, the changes in value during the year 
and other relevant information is provided and commented 
below.

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |
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The tangible assets listed above have a fixed useful life and 
are therefore subject to depreciation (note: there are no ac-
cumulated losses in value to report).
The item “Land and Buildings” consists mainly of:
- a financial leasing agreement signed in 2014  and which 

will expire on 1 April 2018 for the purchase of the build-
ing used as headquarters of the subsidiary Europe Energy 
S.p.A. in San Martino Buon Albergo (VR), the value of 
which is equal to Euro 140,000 for the land and Euro 
666,030 for the building, and building improvement 
works carried out over the years whose depreciation fund 
is Euro 91,728;

- Euro 150,788 to purchase the land where the Company 

will have its new headquarters.
- gross capitalised improvements worth a gross Euro 

81,014 with an accumulated depreciation of Euro 
28,234 for the construction of office space in San Marti-
no Buon Albergo (VR) and shops (boutiques) managed by 
Europe Energy Sales Management S.r.l.

2. Intangible assets
Intangible assets amounted to Euro 9,154,074 (Euro 
697,110 in the previous year).
The item’s structure, the changes in value during the year 
and other relevant information is provided and commented 
below.

Intangible assets: breakdown by assessment criteria

Current Period Previous Period

Patents, Trademarks and Other Rights 50,862 27,843 

Other assets 63,000 0

Goodwill 9,040,212 669,267 

Total 9,154,074 697,110 

Intangible assets: variations

Patents, trade-
marks and other 

rights - total 
value

Goodwill Other assets Total - overall 
values

A. Starting balance 27,843 669,267 0 697,110

B. Increase 58,300 8,373,117 63,000 8,494,417

B.1 Purchases 58,300 8,373,117 63,000 8,494,417

C. Decrease -35,280 -2,172 0 -35,280

C.2 Depreciation -35,280 -2,172 0 -37,452

D. Inventory, closing balance 50,862 9,040,212 63,000 9,154,074 

Goodwill reported in the balance sheet for a total of Euro 
9,040,212, consists for Euro 667,095 to the share swap 
deficit generated as a result of the merger by incorporation 
of Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. into Europe Energy S.p.A. 

(so-called reverse merger), whose accounting and fiscal 
effects will apply from 1 April 2014, and for a remaining 
Euro 8,373,117, refer to the goodwill incorporated as a 
result of the merger discussed in the introduction to these 
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Explanatory Notes. 
That goodwill was generated in the indirect subsidiary Europe 
Energy Gas & Power S.p.A. as a result of the purchase of 
the business branch on 08 June 2017 formalised by deed 
issued by Notary Gottardo in Padua. Europe Energy & Gas 
Power S.p.A., in fact, formalised the definitive purchase 
from Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation of the company operating 
in the energy and natural gas trading sector previously 
leased out to Europe Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. 
Said goodwill was subjected to a Purchase Price Allocation 
(PPA) and the difference between the purchase price and 
the acquired company’s value was provisionally allocated 
to goodwill in the absence of other significant assets 
associated with the acquisition and still listed in the 
financial statements.
On 30.09.2017, the goodwill was subjected to an 
Impairment test, as required by IAS 36 and as described 

in the assessment criteria section of this document. Based 
on the Impairment test, the Directors did not see the need 
to apply any impairment to the goodwill booked in the 
financial statements. 
Industrial patents and intellectual property rights: these 
refer to costs for the purchase and development of the 
website of the Energy Trading Risk Management software, 
of the CRM and billing software licenses and the licenses 
for the use of the general ledger software.
Other assets: These assets refer to costs incurred to obtain 
the permits to do business in the Romanian market, acting 
through our subsidiary Europe Energy Gas & Power S.r.l.

3. Financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries amounted to Euro 764,551 
(Euro 1,380,179 in the previous year).

Value as of 
30/09/2017

Value as of   
30/09/2016

Main  
Headquarters

LE Trading AS 764,551 1,274,252 Bratislava (SK)

LE Holding SRO 0 9,000 Bratislava (SK)

Europe Energy Efficiency S.r.l. 0 96,927 Milan

Total 764,551 1,380,179

Investments in subsidiaries: cash-flow 

Group investments

A. Inventory, starting balance 1,380,179

B. Increase 0 

B.1 Purchases 0

C. Decrease -615,628

C.1 Sales -509,701

C.2 Other variations -

D. Inventory, closing balance 764,551 

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |

The Slovak company LE Trading AS worth Euro 764,551 
was included in the list of our subsidiaries because on 12 
October 2016, following the sale of the 20% stake, the 
Group’s share in the Slovak company went from 50% to 
30%. The transaction in question produced a capital gain 
of Euro 490,299 for the Group.

The Slovak company LE Holding SRO, in liquidation since 
27 October 2016 and cancelled on 21 December 2017 
with a net worth of Euro 20, has been fully depreciated.
The company Europe Energy Efficiency S.r.l., following the 
repurchase of 100% by Europe Energy S.p.A., was once 
again included in the scope of consolidation.
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Other financial assets
There are no “Financial receivables from third parties”.

4. Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets listed in the financial statements for a 
total Euro 559,442 (Euro 399,248 in the previous) consist 
of credits for deferred IRES (Corporate Income Tax) allocated 
for certain categories of expense incurred over the year, but 
whose fiscal recognition is deferred to future years, when 
the conditions established by tax legislation apply to the 
individual case. For more information about this balance 
sheet item’s structure, please refer to the detailed notes to 
the item “Tax expenses / (income)” provided further on in 
these Notes.
Please note that pursuant to approved Law No. 208/2015 
(so-called “Stability Law 2016”), which changed the IRES 
rate to 24% starting from the financial statements drafted 
after the current one as of 31 December 2016, deferred tax 
assets were calculated by applying this rate.
We also ought to point out that deferred tax assets 
are accounted for only if the management believes it 
is reasonably certain that in subsequent accounting 
periods, the Company will be able to generate taxable 
income adjusted to full recovery of the credits listed in 
the balance sheet.

Prepaid tax assets: detailed breakdown for current year and previous year

IRES  
(Corporate 

Income Tax) 
- Offsetting 

item in Income 
Statement - 
Current year

IRAP 
 (Regional 

Income Tax) 
- Offsetting 

item in Income 
Statement - 
Current year

Total  
(IRES + IRAP) - 
Offsetting item  

in Income 
Statement - 
Current year

Current  
Period - Total

Benefits after the end of the 
employment relationship

4,625 0 4,625 11,700

Depreciation of intangible assets (IAS) -4,964 -399 -5,363 11,015

Losses from previous year carried 
forward

-3,870 0 -3,870 46,871

Securities impairment 6,467 0 6,467 268,153

Lease agreements 0 0 0 62,699

Taxed credit impairment 114,960 0 114,960 144,000

Risk reserve -3,600 0 -3,600 0

Other prepaid taxes -4,259 0 -4,259 15,004

Total 109,359 -399 108,960 559,442

The breakdown of deferred tax assets and the nature of 
the items and the temporary differences from which they 
emerge are shown below.
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IRES  
(Corporate 

Income Tax) 
- Offsetting 

item in Income 
Statement - 

Previous year

IRAP  
(Regional 

Income Tax) 
- Offsetting 

item in Income 
Statement - 
Previous year

Total  
(IRES + IRAP) 

- Offsetting 
item in Income 

Statement - 
Previous year

Total 
Previous year

Benefits after the end of the  
employment relationship

39 39 266 305 

Depreciation of other intangible assets -3,634 -3,634 26,289 22,655 

Credit impairment 29,040 29,040 0 29,040 

Securities impairment 261,686 261,686 0 261,686 

Provision for risks -30,928 -30,928 34,528 3,600 

Lease agreements -7,865 -7,865 70,564 62,699 

Other prepaid taxes 8,251 8,251 11,012 19,263 

Total 256,589 256,589 142,659 399,248 

Previous 
period

Increase in 
deferred tax  

assets/liabilities 
booked in the 

Income statement 
in the period

Decrease in 
deferred tax  

assets/liabilities 
booked in the 

Income statement 
in the period

Other 
variations

Current 
Period

Benefits after the end of the 
employment relationship

305 4,625 0 6,770 11,700

Losses from previous year 
carried forward

0 0 -3,870 50,741 46,871

Depreciation of other 
intangible assets

22,655 257 -5,620 -6,277 11,015

Credit impairment 29,040 144,000 -29,040 0 144,000

Securities impairment 261,686 6,467 0 0 268,153

Provision for risks 3,600 0 -3,600 0 0

Lease agreements 62,699 0 0 0 62,699

Other prepaid taxes 19,263 15,004 -19,263 0 15,004

Total 399,248 170,353 -61,393 51,234 559,442
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CURRENT ASSETS

5. Inventory
Inventory amounted to Euro 1,611,332 (Euro 653,771 in 
the previous year).

The item refers to Natural Gas in stock at Stogit S.p.A.
As of 30 September 2017, 91,144.04 MWh of gas were in 
stock, whose value was calculated at the weighted average 
monthly cost.
This storage activity began in May 2016.

Assets for prepaid taxes: cash-flow
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6. Financial assets
Other financial assets
Financial assets amounted to Euro 9,798,238 (Euro 
1,892,084 in the previous year).
The composition and the distinction between current and 
non-current assets are shown and commented below.

The item also includes portfolio securities as detailed below:

Other financial assets - breakdown

Current Period Current Period

Receivables from subsidiaries 0 1,401,204

Receivables from affiliates 9,347,388 463,933

Financial receivables 450,000 0

Other securities 850 26,947

Total current financial assets 9,798,238 1,892,084

Other financial assets - current
Current - 
Current  
Period

Total -  
Current  
Period

Current - 
Previous  
Period

Total - 
Previous 
Period

13,967 unlisted shares  
of Banca Popolare di Vicenza

0 0 1,493 1,493

25,000 unlisted convertible bonds  
of Banca Popolare di Vicenza

0 0 25,000 25,000

4,500 unlisted shares of Veneto Banca 0 0 454 454

10 shares of BCC Banca di Verona 850 850 0 0

Total 850 850 26,947 26,947

These assets primarily refer to the Company’s credit with LE 
Trading AS for Euro 9,347,388.
The amount of Euro 450,000 included in the financial as-
sets refers to a loan issued to Slovenian company Energia 
Gas & Power DOO.
All outstanding loans are interest-bearing at the standard 
market rate.

The difference compared to the balance as of 30.09.2016 
(which was equal to Euro 26,947) is due to the total deval-
uation of securities and bonds of Veneto Banca and Banca 
Popolare di Vicenza, which as of 30 September 2017 had 
no market value. In the course of this year, the Company 
has subscribed 10 shares of the Banca di Verona, whose 
value as of 30.09.2017 is Euro 850.

7. Current assets held for sale
The item as of 30.09.2017 amounts to Euro 0 (Euro 18,965 
in the previous year), which represented the Group’s stake 
in Europe Energy Uk Ltd and which was held for sale and 
was sold on 23/01/2017.
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8. Tax receivables
Tax receivables amounted to Euro 5,156,149 (Euro 

Current Period Previous Period

VAT receivables 3,795,240 4,493,151 

IRES (Corporate income tax)/IRAP (Regional Income Tax)  
down payments

0 1,376,490

Research and Development tax receivables 151,929 0

Withholdings 2,754 452 

Other receivables 1,206,225 681,662 

Total tax receivables 5,156,149 6,551,755

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |

6,551,755 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

The item “tax receivables” consists mainly of net credits 
for Power and Gas excise duties and additional payments of 
Euro 1,206,225, and of VAT credits in 2014 that following 
VAT consolidation amount to Euro 3,795,240.
Credits for IRES/IRAP down payments in this year were com-
pensated against with the debt for current taxes for the year.
Tax receivables for research and development activities are 
generated by costs incurred and by costs of labour of inter-
nal personnel assigned to the study and implementation of 
projects developed internally ”NOVA DESK, NOVA TRAD-
ING”, and with the collaboration of the Free University of 
Bolzano 1. CORRELATION, CLASSIFICATION AND MOD-
ELS OF DEPENDENCE FOR AN ANALYSIS OF THE EURO-

PEAN ENERGY MARKET PRICES and 2. ECONOMETRIC 
MODELS FOR THE STUDY OF EUROPEAN ENERGY MAR-
KET PRICES”.
The total capital expenditure amounted to Euro 419,335 
and the relevant tax credit accrued pursuant to Law No. 
190/2014 and equal to Euro 151,929 refers to the 
costs of R&D incurred in the period from 01/10/2016 to 
30/09/2017.

9. Accounts receivable
Accounts receivables net of impairment losses amounted to 
Euro 29,851,519 (Euro 42,990,312 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Accounts receivable 30,606,234 43,272,773 

Total accounts receivable - gross 30,606,234 43,272,773 

Credit impairment fund -754,715 -282,461

Total accounts receivable - net 29,851,519 42,990,312 

The decrease in accounts receivable is mainly due to lower 
volumes of electricity sold for the reasons described in the 
Report of the Board and due to the collection of receivables 
from public administrations.

The credit impairment fund has changed as described be-
low in the year under review:
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This year, the Company has consistently analysed all the 
types of credits, also by relying on specialised credit collec-
tion companies.
For left-over credits, i.e. for which the Company did not 
hire a credit collection company, we applied an analytical 
approach of evaluating the recoverability of the most signif-
icant individual credits.
For the remaining credits, subdivided by classes with sim-

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents amounted to Euro 4,960,797 

Current Period Previous period

Cash on hand 104 4,645 

Bank deposits 4,958,717 7,203,528 

Other cash and cash equivalents 1,976 1,663 

Total 4,960,797 7,209,836 

Previous period Provision  
in the year

Use/Release 
during the year Current Period

Credit impairment fund 282,461 754,715 282,461 754,715

 

Current -  
Current Period

Current - 
 Previous Period Difference

Payables to Social security institutions 23,696 20,456 3,240

Accrued income and prepaid expenses 999,901 849,922 149,979

Security deposits 3,029,043 3,075,518 -46,475

Other assets 19,998,707 8,576,719 11,421,988

Total 24,051,347 12,522,615 11,528,732

Italy EU Non-EU Total

Accounts receivable 29,620,038 231,481 0 29,851,519

ilar risk profiles, we used a concise assessment procedure 
by applying the impairment percentages in order to create a 
historical basis for assessment in future years.
All these analyses have led to integrate the credit impair-
ment fund with a provision for doubtful accounts of Euro 
600,000.

The accounts receivable divided by region are listed below:

With reference to bank accounts, please note that on the 
closing date, the total amount of Euro 1,652,370 has been 
used as guarantee for credit lines granted by Italian and 
foreign banks (Euro 2,652,340 as of 30.09.2016). 

11. Other assets
Other assets amounted to Euro 24,051,347 (Euro 
12,522,615 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.
The composition and the distinction between current and 
non-current item shares are shown and commented below.

(Euro 7,209,836 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.
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The item “Security deposits” mainly consists of the deposit 
paid to GME for Euro 2,075,000 guaranteeing electricity 
purchases and other security deposits for a total of Euro 

Accrued income and prepaid expenses Current -  
Current Period

Current - 
 Previous Period Difference

Agent commissions 704,038 152,951 551,087

Subscription/membership fees 38,598 20,506 18,092

Insurance and bank guarantees 89,325 118,495 -29,170

Lease agreements 26,913 61,820 -34,907

Other 141,027 496,150 -355,123

Total 999,901 849,922 149,979

Other assets Current -  
Current Period

Current - 
 Previous Period Difference

Advance payments to suppliers 4,565,942 5,372 4,560,570

Other 15,426,507 8,489,039 6,937,468

Accounts payable 6,258 82,308 -76,050

Total 19,998,707 8,576,719 11,421,988

954,043 paid to the CAO (Central Allocation Office), Snam 
Rete Gas, Terna, the CEGH and other vendors always as a 
guarantee for outstanding contracts.

Please note that there are no accruals and deferrals ex-
ceeding 5 (five) years listed n the balance sheet closing 

The “advances payments to suppliers” include such ad-
vance payments for the purchase of electricity and nat-
ural gas.
The item “Other” mainly consists of “Receivables for 
MTM”, which derive from the evaluation (Mark to Market) 
of price hedging contracts for the purchase/sale of electric-
ity and gas for Euro 15,058,425 (Euro 7,226,800 in the 
previous year) and consists of:
- the inclusion of the credit towards “clearer” due to the 

accrual accounting effect of the transactions carried out 
on regulated markets for Euro 207,754 (Euro 2,521,536 
in the previous year);

- the fair value of derivative contracts for Euro 14,850,672 
(Euro 4,705,264 in the previous year), which represents 
the emerging value at the date of preparation of the fi-
nancial statements for contracts signed by the Company 
(portfolio). 

on 30.09.2017.
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Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities

Notes Current 
period

Current 
Period

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 12

Share capital 1,908,730 1,908,730

Other reserves 11,015,286 9,462,357

Reserve for actuarial gains (losses) -27,996 -11,763

Profit (loss) carried forward -425 -1,803

Operating profit (loss) 2,581,047 1,341,919

Group Shareholders’ Equity 15,476,644 12,699,440

Shareholders’ Equity and net profit (loss) for the period 
attributable to minority interests

0 0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 15,476,644 12,699,440

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current financial payables 13 639,779 189,058

Provision for risks and charges 14 20,894 268,623

Severance pay and other employee benefits 15 381,096 223,514

Deferred tax liabilities 16 93,452 61,428

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,135,221 742,623

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current financial payables 17 30,367,402 14,878,465

Tax payables 18 654,262 191,912

Accounts payable 19 36,301,879 44,790,969

Other liabilities 20 3,060,777 1,987,214

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 70,360,320 61,848,560

TOTAL LIABILITIES 71,495,541 62,591,183

 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 86,972,247 75,290,623
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12. Shareholders’ Equity
The information for each category of shares forming the 
share capital is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Share capital 1,908,730 1,908,730

Legal reserve 195,178 194,131

- Share premium reserve 418,502 418,502

- IAS FTA 2014 conversion reserve 335,836 335,836

- Extraordinary reserve 5,042,789 5,022,880

- Consolidation reserve 5,022,983 3,491,009

Other reserves 10,820,110 9,268,227

Reserve for actuarial gains (losses) -27,996 -11,763

Profit (loss) carried forward -425 -1,804

Operating profit (loss) 2,581,047 1,341,919

Total Group Shareholders’ Equity 15,476,644 12,699,440

The Group’s interest in Shareholders’ equity consists of the 
following items:

The Parent company’s share capital amounts to Euro 
1,908,730 is divided into 1,908,730 shares with a 
nominal value of 1 Euro each. 1,908,730 shares with a 
nominal value of 1 Euro each. 

Reconciliation of the Shareholders’ Equity and net profit 
of the parent company, and Shareholders’ Equity and net 
profit of the Group
In order to better understand the structure of the 

Shareholders’ Equity of the Group and Third parties 
generated as a result of adjustments in the procedure of 
consolidation, please take a look at the following two 
statements:

a) the following table refers to the draft “sub-consolidated” 
statements that identify Europe Energy S.p.A. as the parent 
company for the current and previous year:

Shareholders’ Equity Operating Profit

Values listed in the financial statements of the Parent company 
Europe Energy S.p.A. as of 30.09.2017

16,269,235 2,552,408

Net profit and Shareholders’ equity of subsidiaries 62,235 -117,401

Write-off of book value of investments -62,722 0

Other write-offs from consolidation 0 0

Shareholders’ equity and operating profit attributable  
to the Group (A) 16,268,748 2,435,007

Shareholders’ equity and operating profit attributable to third 
parties (B)

0 0

Shareholders’ equity as resulting from the consolidated financial 
statements closing on 30.09.2017 (A+B) 16,268,748 2,435,007
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b) the following table instead lists the balances for the Parent company Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. that for the purpose 
integrates the sub-group “sub-consolidated Europe Energy S.p.A.”:

The chart below shows the structure and changes in the Group’s consolidated Shareholders’ Equity:

Shareholders’ Equity Net profit

Values listed in the financial statements of the Parent company 
Europe Energy Holding as of 30.09.2017

7,541,592 -21,693

Net profit and Shareholders’ equity of subsidiaries 16,455,667 2,602,740

Write-off of book value of investments -8,520,617 0

Other write-offs from consolidation 0 0

Shareholders’ equity and operating profit attributable  
to the Group (A) 15,476,644 2,581,047

Shareholders’ equity and operating profit attributable to third 
parties (B)

0 0

Shareholders’ equity as resulting from the consolidated financial 
statements closing on 30.09.2017 (A+B) 15,476,644 2,581,047

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED AMOUNT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP AS OF 30/09/2017

Share 
capital

Legal 
reserve

Share 
premium 
reserve

FTA 
reserve 

Extra- 
ordinary 
reserve

Consoli- 
dation 
reserve

OIC  
(Italian 

Accounting 
Body) 
reserve

Profit 
(loss) 

carried 
forward

Operating 
profit Total

On closing date 
- 30.09.2016

1,908,730 194,130 418,502 335,836 5,022,880 3,491,009 -11,763 -1,803 1,341,919 12,699,440

Distribution 
of operating 
profit as of 
30.09.2016

0 1,048 0 0 19,909 0 0 0 -20,957 0

Reclassified 
operating 
profit of 
consolidating 
company as of 
30.09.2016

0 0 0 0 0 1,320,962 0 0 -1,320,962 0

IAS effect 0 0 0  0 0 0 1,378 0 1,378

Effect of 
variation of 
consolidation 
scope

0 0 0 0 0 211,012 0 0 0 211,012

Reserve for 
actuarial gains 
(losses)

0 0 0 0 0 0 -16,233 0 0 -16,233

Operating profit 
in current 
semester 
(30.09.2017)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,581,047 2,581,047

On closing date 
- 30.09.2017 1,908,730 195,178 418,502 335,836 5,042,789 5,022,983 -27,996 -425 2,581,047 15,476,644
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In the current accounting period there are no third party 
items, as holdings are fully or directly or indirectly owned 
by the Parent company.
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
CONSOLIDATED AMOUNT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP AS OF 30.09.2016

Share 
capital

Legal 
reserve

Share 
premium 
reserve

FTA 
reserve 

Extra- 
ordinary 
reserve

Consoli- 
dation 
reserve

OIC  
(Italian 

Accounting 
Body) 
reserve

Profit 
(loss) 

carried 
forward

Operating 
profit Total

On closing date - 
30.09.2015

1,908,730 3,571 418,502 337,369 911,804 4,499,610 6,090 0 3,273,816 11,359,492

Distribution of 
operating profit as 
of 30.09.2015

0 190,559 0 0 4,104,986 0 0 0 -4,295,545 0

Reclassified 
operating profit 
of consolidating 
company as of 
30.09.2015

0 0 0 0 6,090 -1,021,729 -6,090 0 1,021,729 0

IAS effect 0 0 0 -1,533 0 21,897 0 -1,803 0 18,561

Effect of variation 
due to exits from 
consolidation 
scope

0 0 0 0 0 -8,769 0 0 0 -8,769

Reserve for 
actuarial gains 
(losses)

0 0 0 0 0 0 -11,763 0 0 -11,763

Operating profit 
in current period 
(30.09.2016)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,341,919 1,341,919

On closing date - 
30.09.2016 1,908,730 194,130 418,502 335,836 5,022,880 3,491,009 -11,763 -1,803 1,341,919 12,699,440

Previous period Provision  
in the year

Use/Release 
during the year Current period

FTA reserve 335,836 0 0 335,836

The FTA reserve was booked in the opening assets and 
liabilities statement of the first balance sheet (1/10/2014) 
prepared in accordance with the IFRS and is considered 
an available reserve. The release in the income statement 
operated during the year refers entirely to the  Fair Value 
allocated in the previous year.

Consolidation reserve
As of 30 September 2017, the item amounts to Euro 
5,022,983 and the changes that occurred during the year 

First Time Adoption Reserve
The reserve refers to the value calculated during first-time 
application of the IAS/IFRS and changed as follows during 
the year:

refer mainly to the value carried forward for operating profit 
in the previous year and the differences in consolidation, 
which are due mainly to the different consolidation scope.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

13. Non-current financial payables
Loans amounted to Euro 639,779 (Euro 189,058 in the 
previous year).
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This item refers to loans from banks and to the non-current 
share.

Provisions for future risks and expenses - breakdown

Current Period Previous Period

Other provisions for future risks and expenses: 0 255,497 

- Provision for recovery of assets under lease 0 240,497

- Other provisions 0 15,000

Lay-off fund and similar obligations 20,894 13,126

Total provisions for future risks and expenses 20,894 268,623 

Provisions for future risks and expenses - changes

Other provisions  
for future risks and expenses

Starting balance 255,497 

Additional provisions 20,894 

Provisions used -255,497 

Closing balance 20,894 

14. Provisions for future risks and expenses
Provisions for future risk and expenses amounted to Euro 
20,894 (Euro 268,623 in the previous year).
The item’s structure and the changes in value during the 
year are provided and commented below.

Last year’s balance refers mainly to the provision for 
recovery of assets under lease amounting to Euro 240,497, 
allocated as a result of the lease agreement with Gascom 
S.r.l. in liquidation, which represents the provision made to 
replenish the loss of value suffered by Company’s assets in 
use that will have to be returned to the grantor, which due 
to the effect of the acquisition has been settled.
The “Provision for pensions and similar funds” for Euro 
20,894 (Euro 13,126 in the previous year), which represents 
the provision for supplementary customer allowances 
and which, according to IAS 37, when the liability refers 
to deferred payments over time, it is discounted at a rate 
before taxes that reflects current market assessments of the 

present value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
The provision increases in each period to reflect the passage 
of time, with the borrowing costs accounted for according 
to competence.

During the year, this principle was applied to the 
supplementary customer allowances fund paid out to 
customers, which has generated a negative difference of 
Euro -64,641 (Euro -30,877 in the previous year). The 
Company’s total debt towards agents was calculated by 
an independent actuary based on the following economic 
and financial assumptions about the economic parameters 
involved in the calculation:

Economic assumptions 30.09.2017 30.09.2016

Discount rate 0,96% 0,45%
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Outstanding procedures
On 19 March 2015 following audits involving both direct 

taxes and VAT, the Guardia di Finanza has issued a report 

in regard to certain operations carried out by Europe Energy 

S.p.A. (the “Company”) in the period 2009 – 2013. 

In connection with the Report, on 14 May 2015 the Com-

pany submitted its observations to the Inland Revenue Of-

fice, Regional Directorate of Lombardy (the “Office”), as 

required by art. 12.7 of Law No. 212/2000, reiterating that 

the claims filed are to be considered absolutely devoid of 

any substance. 

On 29 June 2015, the Office issued the notice of assess-

ment for the tax year 2009 only; on the same date, the 

Office also issued the notice of dispute of the sanctions with 

regard to the same tax period.

As regards penalties, on 1 September 2015, the Compa-

ny promptly submitted its defensive deductions pursuant 

to Article 16 of Legislative Decree No. 472/97 reiterating 

again that the claims are to be considered absolutely devoid 

of any substance.

With regard to taxes, on 15 September 2015, the Company 

presented its own assessment report pursuant to Article 6.2 

of Legislative Decree No. 218/97. 

The terms for the investigation with accession have fruit-

lessly expired on December 31, 2015. 

The Company therefore notified an appeal against the no-

tice of assessment on 24 December 2015 for the tax year 

2009. 

The appeal was filed with the Provincial Tax Commission of 

Milan (“CTP”) on 19 January 2016.

On 04 January 2016, the Company received the notice of 

assessment for the tax year 2010, issued by the Office; on 

the same date, the Office also issued the notice of dispute 

of the sanctions with regard to the same tax period.

Again, as regards sanctions, the Company, on 14 January 

2016, filed its own defensive deductions pursuant to Article 

16 of Legislative Decree No. 472/97. 

As for taxes, instead, the Company filed, after having use-

lessly completed the subscription phase, filed an appeal on 

13 June 2016.

On 10 August 2016, disregarding the Company’s defensive 

deductions, the Office issued an Order imposing sanctions 

for tax year 2009, which the Company immediately ap-

pealed on 22 November 2016.

On 20 December 2016, the Office notified:

- The assessment notice regarding tax year 2011;

- The Order contesting the penalties related to 2011;

- The Order contesting the penalties related to 2012;

- The Order imposing the penalties related to 2010.

This last Order was immediately appealed by the Company, 

filing appeal with the CTP on 24 February 2017.

As regards the penalties for 2011 and 2012, the Company 

filed its own defensive deductions on 27 January 2017, 

pursuant to Article 16 of Legislative Decree No. 472/97. 

With regard to taxes due for 2011, instead, the Company, 

after having uselessly completed the subscription phase, 

promptly filed an appeal with the CTP on 13 June 2017.

Pending the decision on the appeal, on 16 February 2017, 

the CTP issued the judgment regarding the notice of assess-

ment for tax year 2009, in response to the Company’s ap-

peal. On 4 December 2017, the Office appealed to the CTR 

against the CTP and on 4 December 2017, the Company 

filed a suit in second instance, depositing its counterclaims.

On 14 April 2017, the CTP issued the judgment regarding 

the notice of assessment for tax year 2010, admitting the 

Company’s appeal. On 4 December 2017, the Company 

filed a suit in second instance, depositing its counterclaims. 

On 5 May 2017, the CTP issued the judgment regarding the 

Order imposing penalties for tax year 2010, accepting the 

Company’s appeal.

On 16 November 2017, the CTP filed the judgment regard-

ing the order imposing penalties for the fiscal year 2010, 

dismissing the appeal of the Company despite its appeal 

having already been accepted on 14 April 2017. The Com-

pany will appeal the CTP’s judgement by the deadline, ask-

ing the CTR to provisionally suspend the order appealed.

With regard to the judgment concerning the assessment for 

tax year 2011, the CTP has not announced a date for the 

hearing yet. 

On 22 November 2017, the Office notified:

- the Order imposing the penalties related to 2011;

- the Order imposing the penalties related to 2012.

the Company will file an appeal with the CTP against these 

orders by the prescribed deadline.

On 14 December 2017, the Office notified:

- The assessment notice regarding tax year 2012;

- The Order contesting the penalties related to 2012.

Even in these cases, the Company will file an appeal against 

these orders with the CTP by the prescribed deadline.

The Company, based on the three favourable judgments re-

garding cancellation of the assessment for tax years 2009 

and 2010, and also based on the Order imposing penal-

ties for tax year 2009 and the authoritative opinions of its 

consultants, believes that the risk to these assessments is 

considered possible and therefore we should not make any 

provision in this balance sheet.
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15. Severance pay and other employee benefits
The item includes debt for advance tax payments and 

amounts to Euro 381,096 (Euro 223,514 in the previous 
year) and has recorded the following fluctuations:

Current Period

Starting balance 223,514

Net operating provision 143,896

Severance Pay resulting from acquisition of the business branch  
Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation

100,731

Use for lay-off and/or advances -115,789

Interest costs -1,535

Actuarial gains (losses) 30,279

Closing balance 381,096

The items Actuarial gains and losses and Financial expenses 
(interest cost) are generated by the actuarial method applied 
to calculate the value of the fund and recalculated as of 1 
January 2007. As mentioned above, in accordance with IAS 
19, the Company lists actuarial gains and losses directly 
under equity.
As mentioned in the section regarding the drafting 
principles, as result of the amendments introduced by Law 
No. 296 dated 27 December 2006 (“2007 Financial Law”) 
and subsequent decrees and regulations implementing the 
law, for the purposes of IAS 19, the Company calculated 
only Severance pay-related liabilities deposited with the 

Company, as shares accrued from 1 January 2007, as a 
result of choices made by the employees during the first 
half of 2007, were paid to a separate entity (supplementary 
pension funds or INPS social security funds). As a result 
of these payments, the Company will no longer have 
obligations for work performed by employees in the future 
(so-called defined contribution plan).

The Company’s obligation towards employees was calculated 
by an independent actuary based on the following economic 
and financial assumptions about the economic parameters 
involved in the calculation:

Economic assumptions 30/09/2017 30/09/2016 

Increase in cost of living 1.50% 1.50%

Discount rate 1.55% 0.80%

Salary increment 0.50% 0.50%

Demographic assumptions 30/09/2017 30/09/2016 

Probability of death 1% 1%

Turnover 10% 10%
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The values calculated on the basis of actuarial assumptions 
as of 30 September 2017 resulted in an increase of Euro 
30,279 compared to the value of the fund on 30 September 
2016, with an offset account net of the fiscal effect listed 
in the statement of income and expenses booked under 
equity, as indicated by the reference standard.

The discount rates used for the revaluation of liabilities 

are defined on the basis of the yield curves of high-
quality fixed-income securities for which the amounts 
and due-dates correspond to the amounts and due-dates 
of payments estimated for the benefits. The effect of the 
increase or decrease of 1/4% in the rate of increase in 
the cost of living and the 1/4% in the discount rate used, 
assuming all other assumptions remain the same, would 
look as follows:

Demographic assumptions Rate of increase  
in cost of living Discount rate

Variation 1/4% -1/4% 1/4% -1/4%

Net effect 47,945 34,256 33,096 49,228

16. Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities amount to Euro 93,452 (Euro 
61,428 in the previous year).
The item was calculated on temporary differences between 
the values listed in the financial statements and the 
corresponding values recognised for tax purposes, on the 
basis of the rates that we assume will be applied at the time 
when these differences will be cancelled out: IRES 24% and 
IRAP 3.9%.

The breakdown of deferred tax liabilities and the nature of 
the items and the temporary differences from which they 
emerge are shown below.
Please note that pursuant to approved Law No. 208/2015 
(so-called “Stability Law 2016”), which changed the IRES 
rate to 24% starting from the financial statements drafted 
after the current one as of 31/12/2016 and deferred tax 
assets were calculated by applying this rate.

Deferred tax liabilities: detailed breakdown for current year and previous year

IRES - 
Offsetting item 

Income 
statement - 
Current year

IRAP  
(Regional 

Income Tax) 
- Offsetting 

item in Income 
Statement - 
Current year

Total offsetting 
item in Income 

Statement - 
Current year

Total Current 
Year

Changes in improvement works 
depreciation fund

0 0 0 14,905

Supplementary customer allowances 10,925 0 10,925 15,514

Default interest receivables not 
collected

22,064 0 22,064 59,850

Non-capitalised dividends -924 0 -924 3,225

Total 32,065 0 32,065 93,452
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CURRENT LIABILITIES

17. Current financial payables
The items amounts to Euro 30,367,402 (Euro 14,878,465 

IRES (Corporate 
Income Tax) 

Offsetting item 
in Income 

Statement - 
Previous year

IRAP (Regional 
Income Tax)

Offsetting item 
in Income 

Statement - 
Previous year

Total 
Offsetting item 

in Income 
Statement - 
Previous year

Total - 
Previous year

Benefits after the end of the 
employment relationship

-1,201 0 -1,201 0

Fair value of derivatives -126,450 -17,933 -144,384 0

Supplementary customer allowances 0 0 0 4,588

Changes in improvement works 
depreciation fund

-1,870 0 -1,870 14,905

Default interest receivables not 
collected

-19,246 0 -19,246 37,786

Non-capitalised dividends -4,034 0 -4,034 4,149

Total -152,802 -17,933 -170,737 61,428

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES: CHANGES

Importo 
all’inizio 

dell’esercizio

Imposte 
anticipate/
differite 

rilevate a Conto 
Economico 

nell’esercizio

Decrementi 
Imposte 

anticipate/
differite rilevate a 
Conto Economico 

nell’esercizio

Importo  
alla fine 

dell’esercizio

Supplementary customer allowances 4.588 10.925 15.514

Changes in improvement works 
depreciation fund

14.905 0 14..905

Default interest receivables not 
collected

37.786 22.064 59.850

Non-capitalised dividends 4.149 0 -924 3.225

Total 61.428 32.989 -924 93.452

in the previous year). Debt due within one year are 
representable as follows:

Current Period Previous Period 

Financial payables 30,178,336 13,706,532 

Bank overdrafts 8 1,076,094 

Other loans - short-term lease share 189,058 95,839 

Total 30,367,402 14,878,465 
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The item “financial liabilities”, with the exception of fees 
and services, refers to the use of credit lines to unfreeze 
trade receivables by opening a credit line on the bank 
account, i.e. invoice advance payment accounts.
During the year, as part of the purchase the business 
branch from Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation, the Company 
signed an agreement for a loan with Unicredit S.p.A. 
for Euros 5,468,929 (Euro 5,195,482 as of 30/09/17) 
guaranteed by a pledge issued by the parent company 

Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. on 70% of the shares of the 
Company and by maintaining certain financial covenants 
based on standard market conditions.

18. Tax payables
The item amounted to Euro 654,262 (Euro 191,912 in the 
previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.
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Current Period Previous Period

VAT 149 -12,006 

IRES (Corporate Income Tax) 199,295 0 

IRAP (Regional Income Tax) -2,351 0 

Employee withholding taxes 37,923 61,965 

Independent contractor withholding taxes 42,682 38,043 

Other tax payables 376,564 103,910 

Total 654,262 191,912

The debt for IRES and IRAP is the debt generated by the 
calculation of current taxes for the year.
The item “Other tax payables” mainly consists of Euro 
334,082 for excise duty balance payments for Gas and 
electricity accrued in the year 2017 until 30/09/2017.

19. Accounts payable
Accounts payable to affiliates are booked for a total Euro 
36,301,879 (Euro 44,790,969 in the previous year) and 
are listed in the balance sheet net of any trade discounts and 
cash at hand indicated in the invoice. Their nominal value 
has been adjusted in the event of invoicing adjustments, in 
the measure of the amount listed as offset.
These debts are all current.

The accounts payable divided by region are listed below: 

Payables to third parties Italy EU Non-EU Total

Outstanding Letters of credit 0 -13,024 -168,836 -181,860

Suppliers 6,049,266 2,701,400 225,757 8,976,423

Outstanding invoices 24,368,313 2,835,972 303,031 27,507,316

Total 30,417,579 5,524,348 359,952 36,301,879

20. Other liabilities
The item amounted to Euro 3,036,777 (Euro 1,987,214 in 
the previous year).

The structure and details of accrued liabilities are set out 
below and commented.
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As of 30 September 2017, the item shows a balance of 
Euro 1,225,499 (Euro 865,868 in the previous year) and 
mainly refers to the operating expenses that have not yet 
accrued financially. In this case, the AEEG contributions 
were paid on 10 October 2017.

Potential obligations and liabilities
Obligations
As of 30 September 2017, the Company’s obligations 
and liabilities amounted to Euro 14,061,051 (Euro 
49,550,391 in the previous year) and can be broken down 
as follows: 
• Bank guarantees issued to electricity suppliers for Euro 

6,450,000 (compared to Euro 7,600,000  in the year 
that closed on 30.09.2016);

• Bank guarantees issued for purchase of electricity from 
the electricity stock exchange and on the IDEX market for 
Euro 3,950,000 (compared to Euro 650,000 in the year 
that closed on 30.09.2016);

• Bank guarantees issued for ancillary services on elec-
tricity purchases (transport, dispatching, etc.) for Euro 
639,579 (compared to Euro 665,000 in the year that 
closed on 30.09.2016);

• Bank guarantees issued to electricity suppliers for Euro 

Other payables – breakdown

Current Period Previous Period 

Salaries and wages 293,987 519,277

Payables to Social security institutions 153,539 111,524 

Directors’ fees 35,536 50,152 

Accrued expenses and deferred income 1,225,499 865,868

Other payables 1,328,216 440,393 

Total 3,036,777 1,987,214

Accrued liabilities – detailed breakdown

Current Period Previous Period 

AEEG and AGCM contributions 877,236 825,668 

Other 348,263 40,200

Total 1,225,499 865,868 

6,450,000 (compared to Euro 37,112,325  in the year 
that closed on 30.09.2016);

• Other guarantees for Euro 112,979 (Euro 1,373,066 
in the previous year), of which Euro 100,731 in favour 
of Gascom S.r.l. in liquidation as guarantee for Sever-
ance Pay transferred wit the purchase of the company on 
8/06/2017.

Performance bonds given in favour of Group companies for 
Euro 4,450,000 (Euro 37,112,325 in the previous year) 
are all in favour of the company LE Trading AS and can be 
broken down as follows:
- Euro 3,450,000 for three bank sureties to open a credit 

line;
- Euro 1 million for a “parent company guarantee” to fulfil 

contractual obligations.

Please note that with deed of pledge stipulated on 8 June 
2017, the Company has established a lien on share certif-
icate no. 23, representative of 3.5 million shares, with a 
total nominal value of Euro 3.5 million and equal to 70% 
(seventy percent) of the share capital of the subsidiary 
Europe Energy S.p.A. to Unicredit S.p.A. as guarantee for 
claims on the loan of Euro 5,468,929.
This pledge is a constraint to the distribution of dividends.
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PART G
Information about the Income Statement 

Item breakdown
Before we proceed to discuss the individual items, please note 
that the comments to the general trend of costs and revenues, 
as required under the 1st paragraph of art. 2428 of the Italian 
Civil Code, are discussed in the Report of the Board.
The analytical discussion of the profits or losses in the 

Income statement and the preceding comments to the 
items of the Assets and Liabilities allow us to confine our 
discussion hereinafter to the main items alone.

21. Revenues from sales and services
Revenues from sales and the provision of services amounted 
to Euro 294,026,231 (Euro 442,960,108 in the previous 
year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period 

Sale of assets 283,109,552 437,793,152 

Fair value of derivatives 10,145,408 4,245,444

Provision of services 771,271 921,512 

Total 294,026,231 442,960,108 

The decrease in revenues is mainly due to lower volumes 
of electricity sold for the reasons described in the Report 

of the Board.
Below is the breakdown by geographical area:

Current Period Previous Period 

Italy 209,196,749 330,366,537 

Other EU countries 84,829,482 112,593,571 

Total 294,026,231 442,960,108 

Trading margin
Below we provide a statement that summarises the main 
characteristics of financial derivatives used for the purposes 
described in the Report of the Board (hedging) and booked 

as stated under Part A of these Explanatory Notes, as of 30 
September 2017:

Type of contract Purchase/sale  
Contract Fair value Reference 

Quantity (mwh)

Financial Purchase 53,072,386 5,259,103

Financial Sale -48,623,139 4,957,882

Physical EE purchase -4,386,930 1,793,266

Physical GAS purchase -1,458,672 728,439

Physical EE sale 14,834,663 2,182,150

Physical Gas sales 1,412,365 594,697

Total 14,850,672

Closing Fair Value  
effect in previous year

-4,705,264

Total 10,145,408
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Hedges mainly refer to the PUN (National Single Price) 
and prices listed on the EEX (European Energy Exchange). 
These contracts are classified as either CFD (Contract For 
Difference) or futures contracts with impact on the period 
2016-2018.

The following table shows the same information for the year 
that ended on 30.09.2016:

22. Other revenues and income 
Other revenues and income amounted to Euro 1,321,685 
(Euro 1,133,765 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Tipologia contratto Contratto di 
acquisto/vendita Fair value Quantitativo

di riferimento (mwh)

Financial Purchase 29,534,978 9,428,132

Financial Sale -32,569,401 9,421,093

Physical EE purchase 7,845,681 1,224,155

Physical GAS purchase 2,238,107 1,661,724

Physical EE sale -2,344,101 1,564,435

Total 4,705,264

Closing Fair Value  
effect in previous year

-459,820

Total 4,245,444

Current Period Previous Period

Use of credit impairment fund 0 0 

Other 1,169,755 1,133,765 

- Agent commissions 0 8,902 

-Contribution for research & development 151,930 0

- Contingent assets 920,481 436,797 

- Capital gains on sales of assets 1,405 677,320 

- Other revenues 247,869 10,746 

Total 1,169,755 1,133,765
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Operating costs

23. Cost of raw materials, supplies, goods
Raw materials and supplies used amounted to Euro 
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279,195,131 (Euro 429,755,655 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Raw materials and consumables 280,112,924 430,404,490 

Supplies and miscellaneous 39,768 4,936 

Changes in inventories of raw materials, consumables and 
supplies

-957,561 -653,771

Total 279,195,131 429,755,655 

Current Period Previous Period

Costs for services 5,654,064 5,932,650

Leasehold costs 1,013,085 1,368,816

Credit impairment 754,715 184,486

Provision for risks 0 111,421

Miscellaneous operating expenses 1,596,741 1,264,584

Total value 9,018,605 8,861,957

24. Other operating costs
Other operating costs amounting to Euro 9,018,605 (Euro 

8,861,957 in the previous year) are structured as follows 
and are detailed below:
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The item “Other costs for services” can be broken down as 
follows: 

Current Period Previous Period

Transport 128,262 46,484 

Utilities (water, gas, electricity) 11,555 3,678 

Maintenance 294,821 46,304 

Technical and legal consulting 1,602,497 1,150,390 

Directors’ fees 908,603 1,005,447 

Auditors’ fees 112,788 92,797 

Remuneration of independent auditor 98,150 93,420 

Similar services to employees 865 409 

Agent commissions 805,604 730,727 

Advertising 90,944 95,215 

Telephone and postal costs 25,162 245,429 

Insurance fees 51,070 173,616 

Corporate representation 22,819 56,048 

Business trips and transfers 137,526 226,531 

Training and refresher courses 91,983 44,468 

Other costs for services 1,271,415 1,921,687 

Total 5,654,064 5,932,650

Costs for services
Costs for services amounted to Euro 5,654,064 (Euro 

5,932,650 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Bank fees 502,897,34 469,269

EE and GAS Broker fees 382,634,12 742,502

Commissions on sales credits 18,081,99 124,251

Building maintenance costs 21,873,58 68,755

Cleaning 21,436,48 23,210

Subscription/membership fees 74,017,78 86,442

Stationery and miscellaneous purchases 6,073,23 35,073

Compensation from Enel 0 0

Other administrative costs, most of which temporary 0 275,335

Other minor costs 244,400 96,850

Total 1,271,415 1,921,687
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Leasehold costs
Leasehold costs amounted to Euro 1,013,085 (Euro 

Miscellaneous operating expenses
Miscellaneous operating expenses amounted to Euro 
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1,368,816 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Rents and leases 804,449 1,182,560 

Other leasehold costs 208,636 186,256 

Total 1,013,085 1,368,816 

Current Period Previous Period

Stamp duty, levies and other taxes 73,145 53,994 

Contingencies and non-existent liabilities 955,239 359,416 

Miscellaneous operating costs 568,357 851,174 

Total 1,596,741 1,264,584

Current Period Previous Period

Salaries and wages 2,160,937 2,541,833 

Corporate expenses 593,351 690,421 

Severance Pay 143,895 164,596 

Other costs 49,271 3,634 

Total 2,947,454 3,400,484

1,596,741 (Euro 1,264,584 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

25. Personnel costs
Personnel costs amounted to Euro 2,947,454 (Euro 

3,400,484 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

30/09/2017 30/09/2016 CHANGES

Labour 
cost

Workforce 
as of  

30.09

Average 
workforce

Labour  
cost

Workforce 
as of  

30.09

Average 
workforce

Labour  
cost

No. of 
employees 

Average 
workforce

2,947,454 56 64 3,400,484 75 71 -453,030 -19 -7
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The following table illustrates the variation in the workforce 
by type of role:

26. Amortisation, depreciation and other provisions

 30/09/2016 Newly hired Dismissed Career 
advancements 30/09/2017 Average 

workforce

Executives 0 0 0 0 0 0

Office 
Managers

10 11 -11 0 10 10

Employees 65 46 -65 0 46 54

Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 75 57 -74 0 56 64

Current Period Previous Period

Depreciation of tangible assets 102,098 79,435

Depreciation of intangible assets 37,588 19,681

Losses and reversals to impairment 5,128 0

Total 144,814 99,116

Depreciation of tangible assets
Depreciation of intangible assets amounted to Euro 

102,098 (Euro 79,435 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Buildings 32,043 32,637 

Plant and machinery 1,850 655 

Leasehold in leases 4,141 0

Other Buildings, Plant and Machinery 64,064 46,143 

Total 102,098 79,435
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Depreciation of intangible assets
Depreciation of intangible assets amounted to Euro 37,588 

The item “Capital gains on foreign currency exchanges” is 
exclusively made up by the difference between the value of 
services purchased by the Company in a foreign currency, as 
recorded in the books when entering the respective invoice, 
compared to the value in a foreign currency recorded when 
paying the invoice. 
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(Euro 19,681 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Patents, Trademarks and Other Rights 37,588 19,681 

Total 37,588 19,681 

Losses and reversals to impairment
Losses and reversals due to impairment losses amounted 
to Euro 5,128 (Euro 0 in the previous year) and refer to a 
trademark no longer used.

27. Financial income
Financial income amounted to Euro 146,014 (Euro 
549,595 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Income from securities 0 543 

Income from securities 682 2,405 

Capital gains on foreign exchange 454 164 

Other financial income 144,877 546,483 

Total 146,014 549,595

28. Financial expenses
Financial expenses amounted to Euro 513,425 (Euro 
750,326 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

Bank loans 497,552 656,314 

Miscellaneous interest payables 1,339 883 

Total interest payables 498,891 657,197 

Capital losses on foreign exchange 597 154 

Other financial expenses 13,937 92,975 

Total 513,425 750,326

The item “Capital gains on foreign currency exchanges” is 
entirely made up by the difference between the value of 
services purchased by the Company in a foreign currency, as 
recorded in the books when entering the respective invoice, 
compared to the value in a foreign currency recorded when 
paying the invoice. 

29. Income (expenses) from investments
This item amounted to Euro 88,492 (Euro -165,267 in the 
previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.



86 |   EUROPE ENERGY

30. Financial income (expenses) from Group companies
Financial income from Group companies excluded from the 
scope of consolidation amounted to Euro 303,372 (Euro 

Current Period Previous Period

Other income 490,299 23,100 

- Other variations (increase) 490,299 23,100 

Expenses -401,807 -188,367 

- Impairment -385,262 -126,195 

- Losses on disposal 0 -62,172 

- Depreciation of financial assets -16,545 0

Net profit 88,492 -165,267 

110,603 in the previous year).
Their structure is provided and commented below.

Current Period Previous Period

IRES (Corporate Income Tax) 1,351,508 563,938 

IRAP (Regional Income Tax) 248,236 161,989 

Deferred tax assets and net tax liabilities -76,839 -429,617 

- Deferred tax assets -108,903 -256,589

- Deferred tax assets (write-off) 0 -173,028

- Deferred tax liabilities 32,064 0

Other fiscal expenses / (income) (CNM fiscal consolidation) -37,588 83,037 

Total 1,485,317 379,347 

Current Period Previous Period

From affiliates 303,372 110,603 

Total 303,372 110,603 

31. Fiscal Expenses / (Income)
This item amounted to Euro 1,485,317 (Euro 379,347 in 
the previous year).

The item’s structure, the changes in value during the years, 
and other relevant information are shown below:

Fiscal Expenses / (Income) - breakdown
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IRES (Corporate Income Tax)   

Profit before taxes 4,066,364  

Theoretical tax burden (27.5%)  1,118,250 

TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES taxable in following years

Directors’ fees paid after 30.09.2017 62,516  

Interest surcharge 0.40% and extension   

Provision for risks   

Default interest receivables not collected as of 30.09.2017   

Total 62,516  

TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES FROM PREVIOUS YEARS CARRIED FORWARD:

Directors’ fees paid after 30.09.2016 -80,265  

Write-off of credit impairment fund (previous year) -135,000  

Total -215,265  

DIFFERENCES THAT WILL NOT CARRY OVER IN SUBSEQUENT YEARS:

Default interest receivables not collected as of 30.09.2017 0  

TOTAL -152,749  

Difference (increase)

Non-deductible or unpaid taxes 28,232  

Securities impairment 988,125  

Accommodation and meal expenses 0  

Corporate representation costs 6,151  

Non-deductible corporate vehicle expenses 53,538  

Non-deductible depreciation on goodwill 0  

Other non-deductible depreciation 248  

Contingent liabilities 11,456  

Other variations (increase) 248,679  

Total variations (increase) 1,336,429  

Difference (decrease)   

IRAP personnel cost -12,621  

10% IRAP (higher between paid and chargeable regional income tax) -7,680  

Intangible amortization dropped IAS -20,142  

Statement of reconciliation between balance sheet fiscal expenses and theoretical fiscal expenses
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Contingent assets -51,063  

Other variations (decrease) -243,963  

Total variations (decrease) -335,469  

TAXABLE INCOME 4,914,575  

Current taxes on operating income  1,351,508 

IRAP (Regional Income Tax)   

Production value 7,811,351  

Theoretical tax burden (3.9%)  304,643

TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES TAXABLE IN FOLLOWING YEARS:

Total 0  

TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES FROM PREVIOUS YEARS CARRIED FORWARD:

Total 0  

DIFFERENCES THAT WILL NOT CARRY OVER IN SUBSEQUENT YEARS:

Difference (increase)   

Directors’ fees and INPS contributions  
(excluding fees paid to trade license holders9

909,468  

Municipal Property Tax 1,979  

Other variations (increase) 216,887  

Share of interest on lease fees 3,015  

Credit losses 297,994  

Contingent liabilities 5,189  

Other non-deductible depreciation 5,128  

Total variations (increase) 1,439,660  

Difference (decrease)   

Other variations (decrease) -159,929  

Contingent assets -21,047  

Depreciation of intangible assets (IAS) -20,142  

Irap deduction for newly hired employees  
and/or increase in tax wedge

-2,684,867  

Total variations (decrease) -2,885,985  

IRAP TAXABLE INCOME 6,365,026  

Current operating IRAP  248,236

EXPLANATORY NOTES   |
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Net deferred tax assets

 % % Taxable income Income taxes

Deferred 
 tax  

assets
2017 2018

Balance 
on 

30.09.16
Incr. Decr.

Balance 
on 

30.09.17

Balance 
on 

30.09.16
Incr. Decr.

Balance 
on 

30.09.17

Securities 
impairment

24 24 1,090,359 26,947 0 1,117,305 261,686 6,467 0 268,153

Unpaid 
Directors’ fees

24 24 80,265 62,516 -80,265 62,516 19,264 15,004 -19,264 15,004

Credit 
impairment

24 24 120,000 600,000 -120,000 600,000 29,040 144,000 -29,040 144,000

Transaction 
risk fund

24 24 15,000 0 -15,000 0 3,600 0 -3,600 0

Tax loss 24 24 211,421 0 -16,127 195,294 50,741 0 -3,870 46,871

Tax effect on IAS writings

Leasing IAS17 
(previous 
years)

27,9 27,9 224,725 0 0 224,725 62,699 0 0 62,699

Severance Pay 
IAS 19 (2016)

24 24 966 19,245 0 20,212 305 4,625 0 4,930

Intangible 
Assets

27,9 27,9 83,801 921 -42,639 42,083 22,654 257 -11,896 11,015

Severance Pay 
IAS 19 (2017) 
capital only

  0 0 0 0 0 6,771 -551 6,220

Total   1,826,537 709,629 -274,031 2,262,135 449,989 177,124 -68,221 558,891

Net deferred tax liabilities

 % % Taxable income Income taxes

Deferred  
tax  

liabilities
2017 2018

Balance 
on 

30.09.16
Incr. Decr.

Balance 
on 

30.09.17

Balance 
on 

30.09.16
Incr. Decr.

Balance 
on 

30.09.17

Default 
interest 

24 24 157,443 91,932 0 249,375 37,786 22,064 0 59,850

Non-
capitalised 
dividends

24 24 17,117 0 -3,850 13,267 4,108 0 -924 3,184

Tax effect on IAS writings

Changes in 
improvement 
works 
depreciation 
fund

27,9 27,9 53,423 0 0 53,423 14,905 0 0 14,905

Supplemen-
tary customer 
allowances  
IAS 37

27,9 27,9 19,121 45,520 0 64,641 4,589 10,925 0 15,514

Total   247,104 137,452 -3,850 380,706 61,388 32,989 -924 93,453
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PART H
Risk management and other information 

Below is the additional information required by the IAS/
IFRS, SIC/IFRIC interpretative documents, the Consob bul-
letins and resolutions, and the national legislation, with ref-
erence to the applicable rules of the Italian Civil Code and 
other measures adopted by the national legislature, which 
are discussed in the Report of the Board (please refer to the 
Report for information).

Risk management
With regard to market, credit and liquidity risks, please refer 
to the Report of the Board enclosed herewith.

Information on financial risks
IFRS 13 requires the classification of financial instruments 
at their Fair Value calculated on the basis of the quality of 
the input sources used in their evaluation. 
The above classification required by IFRS 13 implies a “hi-
erarchy of Fair Value” divided into three levels that gives 
priority, in the context of Fair Value measurement, to the 
use of objective market information as opposed to specific 
information and establishes three levels for measuring Fair 
Value, based on the nature of the inputs used in calculat-
ing the value of an asset or liability at the measurement 
date. The hierarchy of Fair Value measurement is defined 
as follows:
• Level 1: determination of Fair Value based on listed 

(unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities. This category includes the in-
struments by which the Company operates directly in 
active markets or in over-the-counter markets that are 
identical assets compared to corresponding organised 
markets (i.e. future);

• Level 2: determination of Fair Value based on calculation 
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models using observable inputs on active markets (other 
than listed prices included in level 1 that are observable 
either directly or indirectly). This category includes the 
instruments by which the Company operates in Over-the-
Counter markets not characterised by a sufficient level of 
liquidity or that do not express a market price continuous-
ly (i.e. OTC formula covers);

• Level 3: determination of Fair Value based on calculation 
models whose inputs are not based on observable market 
data (unobservable inputs) either directly or indirectly in 
no active market.

For the assessment of Fair Value to belong to Level 1, the 
presence or absence of a quote in an active market for an 
instrument identical to the one being calculated becomes 
essential. Based on the indications of IAS 39, a financial 
instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if: 
• quoted prices are readily and regularly available through 

a price list, operator, broker, industry sector, pricing agen-
cy, regulatory authority;

• those prices represent actual and regularly occurring mar-
ket transactions under normal trading conditions. 

Some characteristics may point to an inactive market. 
These include:
• a significant drop in volumes and the number of ex-

changes;
• or prices that vary considerably over time and between 

market participants.
However, it should be noted that these factors, when con-
sidered individually, may not indicate that a market is in-
active. Therefore, to assume that a price is quoted on an 
active market, the following should be absent: 
• recent transactions that occur with some regularity with 

regard to financial instruments identical to those calcu-
lated and, moreover, 

•  prices for such transactions that are promptly and regu-
larly available.

Type of instrument as of 30.09.2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets available for sale 0 0 0 0

Financial assets for derivative contracts 14,850,672 0 0 14,850,672

 Type of instrument as of 30.09.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets available for sale 0 0 18,965 18,965

Financial assets for derivative contracts 4,705,264 0 0 4,705,264
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MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
Lease agreements
Future payments for non-cancellable lease commitments 
are broken down below:

Current Period Previous Period

Within 1 year 189,060 95,839

After 1 year and within 5 years 0 189,060

After 5 years 0 0

Amount

Directors 908,603

Board of Auditors 112,788 

Amount

Legal Audit* 98,150 

* includes separate annual audits (Unbundling) prepared for the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority (AEEG) and out-of-
pocket expenses.

Milan, 24 January 2018
The Sole Director
(Matteo Ballarin)

Remuneration of Board members and independent auditor
Remuneration of Board members
The following table provides information on the remunera-

tion of Directors and statutory Auditors, in accordance with 
art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code:

Remuneration of independent auditor
The table below provides the information required by art. 
149 duodecies of the Consob Issuer Regulations.

The remuneration of the Board of Auditors are quite 
significant because prior to merger by incorporation in the 
company Europe Energy S.p.A. that took place on 1 July 
2017, Europe Energy Gas & Power S.p.A. operated as a fully 
independent business from 1/10/2016 to 30/06/2017.

Significant events after year-end 
Significant events after year-end, as well as information 
on the Company’s position and trend of business, are 
discussed in the Report of the Board, as required by the 
applicable laws.
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30/09/2017 30/09/2016

A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - STARTING BALANCE

Cash and cash equivalents 7,209,836 10,405,140

TOTAL A 7,209,836 10,405,140

B. OPERATING CASH-FLOW

Operating profit 2,581,047 1,341,919

Exchange consolidation perimeter variation effect 196,155 (7,135)

Depreciation (144,814) 99,116

Net change in severance obligations 157,582 84,908

Provision for credit impairment 754,715 184,486

Credit impairment in working capital 97,685 0 126,195

Change in inventories (957,561) (643,809)

Variation in accounts receivable 12,384,078 4,533,635

Variation in tax receivables 1,547,536 (1,503,421)

Variation in deferred tax assets (160,194) (70,566)

Variation in other financial assets (450,850) (284,986)

Variation in other assets (11,528,732) (6,579,673)

Variation in deferred tax assets 32,024 (173,029)

Net variation in provision for risks and expenses (247,729) (49,225)

Variation in accounts payable (8,489,090) 8,228,047

Variation in tax payables 462,351 (2,745,900)

Variation in other liabilities 1,049,563 68,412

TOTAL B (2,965,848) 2,608,974 

CONSOLIDATED CASH-FLOW STATEMENT
AS OF 30.09.2017

(Amounts in units of Euro)

follows >

CONSOLIDATED CASH-FLOW STATEMENT   |
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30/09/2017 30/09/2016

C. CASH-FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS

Investments in intangible assets (8,414,248) (21,494)

Disinvestments in tangible assets 12,110 695,436

Equity investments 0 (1,336,824)

Equity disinvestments 615,628 (34,355)

Investments in financial assets held for sale 18,965 (18,965)

Disinvestments in financial assets included in working capital 26,947 (5,547)

TOTAL C (7,740,598) (721,749)

D. CASH-FLOW FROM LOANS

Financing receivables vs connect (7,482,251) 0

Non-current financial payables 450,721 (952,758)

Current financial payables 15,488,937 (4,129,771)

TOTAL D 8,457,407 (5,082,529)

E. OPERATING CASH FLOW (B+C+D) (2,249,039) (3,195,304)

Cash and cash equivalents 4,960,797 7,209,836 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING BALANCE 4,960,797 7,209,836

>

      

Milan, 24 January 2018
The Sole Director
(Matteo Ballarin)
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Dear Shareholder,
The Board of Auditors has conducted its routine monitoring 
activity, drafting a formal report of its findings, as required 
by law. The Board of Auditors has monitored the observance 
of the law and of the Company’s Articles of Association 
based on the principles of correct management, referring to 
the Rules of Conduct of the Board of Auditors recommend-
ed by the National Board of Chartered Accountants and Tax 
Advisors in carrying out its assignment.

The Board of Auditors has participated in the meetings of 
the Board of Directors and in the Shareholders’ Meetings, 
receiving information from the Board of Directors about the 
general trend of business and about the foreseeable trend 
in the future, as well as about the most significant trans-
actions carried out by the Company (and about their scope 
and characteristics) and, based on the information it has 
received, can reasonably ensure that said transactions were 
carried out in accordance with the applicable laws and with 
the Articles of Association, and that they are not manifestly 
imprudent, risky, or such as to compromise the integrity of 
the Company’s assets.

The subject responsible for conducting the statutory audit 
is the auditing firm Deloitte & Touche S.p.A., which has not 
notified us of any significant facts or information that need 
to be stated in this report.

The Board of Auditors has acquired knowledge and con-
ducted its monitoring activity by performing frequent audits 
as to the adequacy of the Company’s organisational struc-
ture and its proper functioning.

More specifically, during the financial year, we have moni-
tored the efficiency of the Company’s organisational struc-
ture, urging the Directors to monitor the Company’s busi-
ness at all times and to ensure that the Company has a 
balanced financial position, given the considerable amount 
of volumes traded by the Company, the risks and consider-
able financial obligations arising therefrom, as well as with 
regard to the implementation and application of the Com-
pany’s business procedures.

We have evaluated and monitored the adequacy of the ad-
ministrative and accounting system, as well as its reliability 
in correctly representing the Company’s transactions, and 
in that regard, have no particular observations to report.

The Board of Directors has not issued statutory opinions 
during the financial year.

No claims were filed under Article 2408 of the Italian Civil 
Code.

We have reviewed the financial statements that closed 
on 30.09.2017, regarding which we have the following 
to report.

Pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28.02.2005 im-
plementing Law
No. 306/2003 (ratified following the entry into force of Reg-
ulation (EU) No. 1606/2002), which provides the option 
for unlisted companies that issue consolidated financial 
statements, as well as for companies included in the con-

EUROPE ENERGY S.P.A.  
WITH SINGLE SHAREHOLDER
Company under the management and supervision of Europe Energy Holding S.r.l.
Registered office: 
Via Fratelli Gabba, 6 20121 MILAN (MI)
R.E.A Number 1932311 - MI
Companies’ Registry of MILAN 
No. 03707740233 
Share Capital: Euro 5,000,000.00 (fully paid-up)

Report of the Board of Auditors 
on the financial statements closing

on 30 September 2017
(pursuant to Articles 2403 and 2429, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code) 

to the Shareholder of Europe Energy S.p.A. with Single Shareholder
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solidation, to adopt the international accounting standards 
(IAS/IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stand-
ards Board (IASB) and approved by the European Union, 
the Company Europe Energy S.p.A. with single shareholder, 
as company included in the scope of consolidation of Eu-
rope Energy Holding S.r.l., has decided to benefit of said 
option and has drafted the financial statements as of 30 
September 2017 according to the International Accounting 
Standards (IAS) and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) and according to the interpretations issued 
by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and by the 
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), recognised by 
the European Union under Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002 
and in force at the end of the year (the set of all the stand-
ards and interpretations of reference referred to hitherto 
are hereinafter referred to as the “EU-IFRSs”). More spe-
cifically, the EU-IFRS have been applied consistently to all 
accounting periods presented in this document.

The Board of Directors has therefore made the financial 
statements for the year that ended on 30 September 2017 
available to us, statements which, as required by interna-
tional accounting standard IAS 1, include the assets and 
liabilities statement, the income statement and statement 
of comprehensive income, the cash-flow statement and the 
explanatory notes to the financial statements (including the 
statement of changes in equity), containing the list of the 
major accounting standards applied and other minor ex-
planatory notes.
 
Seeing that we are not responsible for an analytical review 
of the contents of the financial statements, we have exam-
ined its general layout and its overall compliance with the 
law in terms of its format and structure. We have verified 
compliance with the applicable laws regarding the Report 
of the Board and have no particular observations to report 
in that regard.

Please note that the balance sheet lists goodwill for a total 
Euro 9,040,212, of which Euro

667,095 arising from the share swap deficit following the 
merger by incorporation of Europe Energy Holding S.r.l. into 
subsidiary Europe Energy S.p.A. (reverse merger that took 
place in 2014) and
Euro 8,373,117 referring to goodwill generated by the sub-
sidiary Europe Energy & Gas Power S.p.A. as a result of 
the acquisition of the business branch from Gascom S.r.l. 
in liquidation, which after having been subjected to a Pur-
chase Price Allocation (PPA), has generated a difference 
between the purchase price and the acquired company’s 
value that has been provisionally allocated to goodwill in the 
absence of other significant assets linked to the acquisition. 
As a result of the subsidiary’s merger, the item has there-
fore been incorporated into your Company’s assets and as 
of 30.09.2017, has been subjected to an Impairment Test, 
as required by IAS 36 and as described by the Directors in 
the assessment criteria section.

Transactions among Group companies and with related par-
ties are included in a special paragraph of the Explanatory 
Notes, which you are kindly asked to refer to for a classifi-
cation of the type of transactions and their economic and 
financial effects and their effects on the Company’s assets. 
The Board wishes to point out, among other things, that the 
Board of Directors is responsible for identifying and quantify-
ing the value of significant transactions with related parties.

In conclusion, considering also the results of the statutory 
audit conducted by the auditing firm and contained in the 
Report attached to the financial statements and dated 24 
January 2017, which we have read carefully, we do not find 
any impediments to the approval of the the financial state-
ments for the year that ended on 30 September 2017, nor 
raise any objections to the draft resolution submitted by 
the Board of Directors with regard to the distribution of the 
Company’s operating profit.

Milan, 24 January 2017
THE BOARD OF AUDITORS

(Mr Stefano Breno)
(Mr Roberto Colussi)

(Mr Tommaso Zanini)
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